
Join us!  In an effort to enhance meetings post COVID-19 emergency orders, the 
City Council invites you to join and/or participate in a variety of ways:  Via 
computer Zoom meetings (no app is necessary), telephone, email and/or text! 
See details on page 3. 

Vestavia Hills 
City Council Agenda

AMENDED 
December 12, 2022 

6:00 PM 
1. Call to Order

2. Roll Call

3. Invocation – Tom Bell, Vestavia Hills Chaplain

4. Pledge Of Allegiance

5. Approval Of The Agenda

6. Announcements, Candidates and Guest Recognition

7. City Manager’s Report

8. Councilors’ Reports

9. Approval Of Minutes – November 21, 2022 (Work Session) and November 28, 2022

(Regular Meeting)

Old Business 

New Business 

10. Resolution Number 5427 - A Resolution Declaring Certain Personal Property As Surplus

And Authorizing The City Manager To Sell/Dispose Of Said Property

11. Ordinance Number 3139 – An Ordinance Authorizing And Directing The Conveyance By

The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama Of The Real Estate And Improvements Situated At

1973 Merryvale Road In The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, Commonly Referred To As

“The Old Community Civic Center” (As More Particularly Described Below) To The

Board Of Education Of The City Of Vestavia Hills, Alabama

New Business Requesting Unanimous Consent) 

12. Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5433 - A Resolution Authorizing The City Manager

To Issue A Refund To The State Of Alabama For An Erroneous Tax Sale

First Reading (No Action To Be Taken At This Meeting) 



13. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3137 – Rezoning – 3419 Ronlea Circle; Rezone From

Vestavia Hills Agriculture To Vestavia Hills R-2 To Combine Parcels To Include Into Two

Residential Lots; Gladys Bailey, Owners

14. Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5425 – A Resolution authorizing the installation of a

new support structure for a small cell facility to be located in the right-of-way adjacent to:

(1) 1445 Linda Vista Lane, (2) 2604 Kingwsood Road, (3) 2733 Southview Drive, (4) 1829

Forest Haven Lane, and (5) 2857 Vestavia Forest Drive

15. Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5426 – A Resolution Approving The Dedication Of

Streets In Helen Ridge; Helen Ridge Drive And Helen Ridge Circle

16. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3138 - An Ordinance To Approve A 3-Year Bid For

Street Resurfacing And Repair For The City Of Vestavia Hills

17. Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5428 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2608 Rillwood Road;

Lot 9, Altadena Park, Andrew and Marie Davis, Owner(s)

18. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3140 – Annexation – Overnight – 2608 Rillwood

Road; Lot 9, Altadena Park, Andrew and Marie Davis, Owner(s)

19. Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5429 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2594 Acton Road;

Lot 2, Altadena Valley Country Club, Al and Patricia Foster, Owner(s)

20. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3141 – Annexation – Overnight – 2594 Acton Road;

Lot 2, Altadena Valley Country Club, Al and Patricia Foster, Owner(s)

21. Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5430 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2401 Rocky Ridge

Road; Lot 9, Buckhead, 1st Sector, Charles Kessler, Owner(s)

22. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3142 – Annexation – Overnight – 2401 Rocky Ridge

Road; Lot 9, Buckhead, 1st Sector, Charles Kessler, Owner(s)

23. Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5431 – Annexation – 90 Day – 2565 Rocky Ridge

Road, Grace Covenant Baptist Church; R. O Hughes, Representing

24. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3143 – Annexation – Overnight – 2565 Rocky Ridge

Road, Grace Covenant Baptist Church; R. O Hughes, Representing

25. Public Hearing – Resolution Number 5432 – Annexation – 90 Day – 1420 Branchwater

Circle; Leon R. Gorman, Jr., Owner(s)

26. Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3144 – Annexation – Overnight – 1420 Branchwater

Circle; Leon R. Gorman, Jr. Owner(s)

27. Citizens Comments

28. Executive Session – Possible Purchase/Sale Of Real Estate And Expected/Pending

Litigation

29. Time Of Adjournment



SPECIAL NOTICE CONCERNING CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 

Due to the COVID-19 safety advice given by the ADPH, the City Council work sessions and 
meetings are available via video-conference and teleconference. If you choose not to attend 
in person, you may still participate. Following are instructions for three options to 
participate remotely. 

COMPUTER PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 

To participate in by videoconference, click https://us02web.zoom.us/j/5539517181. When the 
Zoom.us window opens in your browser, click “Allow” so that the page may open to a waiting 
room. The host will open the meeting and bring all into the meeting room at that time.  All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak 
during time(s) identified for public input, activate the “Raise Hand” feature and unmute yourself 
by toggling the mute button. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives you the floor, state your 
name and address for the record and then you may address the Council. 

Using the icons on the Zoom screen, you can:  
 Mute/unmute your microphone (far left)
 Turn on/off camera (“Start/Stop Video”)
 View Participants – opens a pop-out screen that includes the “Raise Hand” icon that you

may use to raise a virtual hand
 Change your screen name displayed in the participant list and video window
 Toggle between “speaker” and “gallery” views – “Speaker view” shows the active

speaker; “Gallery view” tiles all of the meeting participants

TELEPHONE PARTICIPATION (view/participate in real time) 

To participate by telephone, dial 312.626.6799 and enter the meeting ID: 455 534 3275. All 
participants will be automatically muted upon entrance to the meeting. If you wish to speak during 
time(s) identified for public input, press *6 on your phone keypad to unmute yourself. Then state 
your name and wait for the Mayor to recognize you. When the Mayor recognizes you and gives 
you the floor, state your name and address for the record and then address the Council. 

TEXT AND/OR EMAIL (prior to the meeting or in real time) 

If you do not wish to join the meeting but would like to ask a question or make a statement 
regarding an item on the agenda, you may email the City Council directly at 
City.Council@vhal.org. You may also text your question/statement to City Council at 
205.517.1370. Both of these options are available prior to and during each work session and 
meeting. Be sure to provide your name and address for the record and your comments will be 
recited to the City Council as the corresponding item is being addressed. Note: As a matter of 
record, your name and address are required. If identification is not provided, your 
comment/question will not be presented. 

Zoom meetings may be recorded. By participating in the meeting, you are consenting to be recorded.  Zoom-bombing 
is a cyber-crime and is punishable by law. In the event of an attendee intruding into any City of Vestavia Hills Zoom 
meeting, the online broadcast will be ended immediately. Council and/or board members may be readmitted but online 
attendees will not. Although Zoom-bombing is not a frequent occurrence, those wishing to make public comment 
should attend the meeting in person. 



Work Session Minutes 
Page 1 

 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS  

CITY COUNCIL 

WORK SESSION 

NOVEMBER 21, 2022 

 
 The City Council met in special work session on this date beginning at 5 PM following 
posting/publication as required by Alabama law.  The Mayor called the work session to order and 
the clerk checked the roll: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Ashley C. Curry, Mayor  

Kimberly Cook, Councilor 
     Paul Head, Councilor 

George Pierce, Councilor 
 
MEMBERS ABSENT:  Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT: Jeff Downes, City Manager 
     Patrick Boone, City Attorney  
     Cinnamon McCulley, Asst. City Manager 
     Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
     Marvin Green, Fire Chief 
     Shane Ware, Police Captain  
     Jack Wakefield, Planner/GIS 
     Umang Patel, Court Director* 
 
 

BOARD APPOINTMENTS 
 
 Mayor Curry indicated that Mr. Boone has assembled information concerning the 
appointment of members of various city boards, employees, etc. 
 
 Mr. Boone stated that the City of Vestavia Hills changed to a Council-Manager form of 
government in November 2012 which affected the appointment of some boards.  He explained that 
he has broken down the statute for each appointment and the City Ordinance for each board and 
that he’d like to just briefly review at least three of the Boards. 
 
 Librarian.  The Library Board “may” appoint the Librarian.  He stated that has never 
happened in the City. 
 
 Park Board – The Park Board “may” appoint the director.  He stated that up to now, that 
has also never occurred. 
 
 He explained these two appointments are a bit out of the ordinary, but he sees no 
compelling reason to change the current policy/ordinance. 



Work Session Minutes 
Page 2 

 

 
 Mr. Boone stated that the appointment of a BZA member was the catalyst for this updated 
appointment book.  The Code is silent as to who actually makes that appointment says that the 
Council shall establish a procedure.   He stated under the old form of government, it fell to the 
Mayor but this new form of government, this no longer holds true.  He stated that the Council 
should make the board appointment to the BZA. 
 
 Mr. Boone highlighted the other various boards and the appointing authority. 

 Park Board appointment by the Council with Mayor as ex-officio. 
 Design Review is nominated by the Mayor and appointed by the City Council. 
 Planning and Zoning members are appointed by the Mayor. 

 
Mr. Boone stated that the Council can create boards that aren’t spelled out in the statute 

and the DRB is one of those. 
 
Discussion ensued relative to the Beautification Board.  Mayor Curry stated that they do 

many duties including the Belles.  Also, that the City Manager is appointed by the Council and 
works pursuant to agreement. Discussion followed and Mr. Boone pointed out that the new form 
of government was approved by the people through a referendum vote. 

 
The Mayor stated that he likes to rely on the liaison for the board concerning appointment 

or re-appointment of a member.  He stated that these are the individuals who are actually in these 
meetings, and they know more than anyone. 

 
Mrs. Cook stated that, as a practical matter, it is helpful if the Council is given information 

on mayoral recommendations at least two weeks in advance of an appointment to allow council 
members to do their own research on potential appointments. 

 
Mrs. Cook commented that the Council had not been appointing BZA and DRB, and Mr. 

Boone’s information shows that this was incorrect. 
 
Mr. Pierce stated he feels it is best to get board member input as well. 
 
The Mayor and Council thanked Mr. Boone for updating the appointment information. 
 
Mr. Pierce announced that the Chamber Board met in their new offices.  He stated that they 

are working on a member survey to get input from various members and he would like to compare 
those responses to the city’s survey responses.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Work Session Minutes 
Page 3 

 

 
 
 There being no further business, Mrs. Cook made the motion to adjourn.  The Work Session 
adjourned at 5:24 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor  
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



City Council Minutes 
November 28, 2022 

Page 1 
 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
 

MINUTES 
 

NOVEMBER 28, 2022 
 

The City Council of Vestavia Hills met in regular session on this date at 6:00 PM, 
following publication and posting pursuant to Alabama law.  A number of staff and members of 
the general public also attended virtually, via Zoom.com, following publication pursuant to 
Alabama law.  The Mayor called the meeting to order.  The City Clerk called the roll with the 
following: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    Mayor Ashley C. Curry  
      Rusty Weaver, Mayor Pro-Tem 

Kimberly Cook, Councilor  
Paul Head, Councilor  
George Pierce, Councilor 

 
OTHER OFFICIALS PRESENT:  Jeff Downes, City Manager 

Patrick H. Boone, City Attorney 
Cinnamon McCulley, Asst. City Manager 
Rebecca Leavings, City Clerk 
Dan Rary, Police Chief 
Melvin Turner, Finance Director 
Marvin Green, Fire Chief* 
Taneisha Tucker, Library Director 
Christopher Brady, City Engineer 
Umang Patel, Court Director* 

       *present virtually via Zoom or telephone 
 

Tom Bryson, Vestavia Hills Chaplain, led the invocation, followed by the Pledge of 
Allegiance.   
 
 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a motion to approve the agenda.   
 
MOTION  Motion to approve the agenda as presented was made by Mr. Weaver and seconded 

by Mr. Pierce.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 

Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes   motion carried. 

 



City Council Minutes 
November 28, 2022 

Page 2 
 

 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, CANDIDATES, GUEST RECOGNITION  

 
 Mayor Curry recognized Mike Shaw, the newly elected State House representative for 

District 47. 
 Mr. Pierce recognized Taylor Burton, member of the Chamber Board, attending on behalf 

of the Chamber of Commerce. 
 Mr. Weaver recognized his son, Michael Weaver, who is a junior at Samford University 

and is in attendance for a City government project. 
 Mayor Curry announced that the tree lighting is scheduled for tomorrow and, if weather 

does not permit it outside, the lighting will occur on the tree inside the Civic Center. 
 
 

CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

 Mr. Downes highlighted the results of the City’s citizen survey which is released every 
two years and is used extensively during the strategic sessions.  He showed selected slides 
which showed that the overall quality of services and image of the City are high compared 
to national standards. 

 Mr. Downes updated the Council on various projects in the City including Community 
Spaces.  He stated that there are some challenges to finishing projects.  There are only two 
left in Community Spaces:  (1) Crosshaven Drive and (2) Wald Park Phase III.  He stated 
that the City has finished its portion of Crosshaven Drive with the exception of some 
punch list items.  He added that the City is working to ensure that the County continues 
their part of the project which is at the intersection of Green Valley and Crosshaven.  He 
stated they are working toward getting a final completion date from them.  He stated that 
on Phase III of Wald Park they are waiting on some retaining walls which should arrive 
soon.  He stated he will be reporting on this project frequently. 

o Mrs. Cook asked if there is an expected date of completion for Crosshaven Drive?  
Mr. Downes explained that the date he has been utilizing is late March/early April 
2023 based upon previous conversations. 

o Mrs. Cook asked if the County has hired a person for utility relocations?  Mr. 
Downes stated that they have recently hired a second deputy director who will be 
assuming this role and he hopes this will be a positive thing for future projects. 

 Mr. Pierce asked if the communication has begun to advise landscapers not to blow debris 
into the storm sewers.  Mr. Downes explained the steps that have been taken so far and 
will be taken in the future. 

 
 

COUNCILOR REPORTS 
 

 Mrs. Cook stated that she attended the Board of Education earlier this afternoon.  She 
stated that they recognized the Men’s Cross-Country team that finished first in the state 
which is a notable accomplishment.  She added that they heard a presentation regarding 
the fine arts component of the 1Rebel 1Future Plan. A community meeting is being held 
at Liberty Park Middle School tonight. 



City Council Minutes 
November 28, 2022 

Page 3 
 

 Mrs. Cook stated that Hoover will be having a public hearing on the operation of medical 
cannabis dispensing sites on December 5 and she wanted to let the Council and public 
know what is being discussed.  She stated that she is watching the topic closely and has 
concerns about sister cities allowing these dispensaries. 

 
 

FINANCIAL REPORTS 
 

Mr. Turner presented the financial reports for month ending October 2022.  He read and 
explained the reports. 

 
Mrs. Cook ask about the decrease in ad valorem from last year’s collections. 
 
Mr. Turner explained that Jefferson County just needs to release the funds. 
 
Mr. Pierce pointed out that new appraisals were done this year and it is likely more are 

protesting the increase in taxes. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 The Mayor stated that the approval of the minutes November 14, 2022 (Regular Meeting) 
are open for approval.  He asked for a motion: 
 
MOTION: Motion to approve the minutes of the November 14, 2022 (Regular Meeting) was 

made by Mrs. Cook and seconded by Mr. Weaver.  Roll call vote as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – abstained 

Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes   motion carried. 

 
 

OLD BUSINESS  

 
ORDINANCE NUMBER 3135 

 
Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3135 – Conditional Use Approval For A Dog 

Grooming Business For The Property Located At 1401 Montgomery 
Highway; Patrick Crabtree, Property Owner, Stephanie Hazen, Business 
Owner 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3135 was made by Mr. Weaver and 

seconded by Mr. Pierce. 
 
 Mr. Weaver reported that this request came to the P&Z Commission at the October 
meeting.  He indicated it was recommended to be approved as presented as all criteria for a 



City Council Minutes 
November 28, 2022 

Page 4 
 

Conditional use was met.  This is a grooming service by appointment only with no boarding 
allowed. 
 
 Stephanie Hazen was present in regard to this request.  She indicated that she has been 
grooming dogs for years and is very experienced in her business with no noise to disturb anyone 
outside the building. 
 
 Mr. Pierce asked if she checks on vaccination records. 
 
 Ms. Hazen stated she requires that all animals have confirmation of vaccinations. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. There being no one further to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. Roll call vote was 
as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 

Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes   motion carried. 

 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3136 
 
Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3136 – An Ordinance Authorizing The Mayor And 

City Manager To Purchase Customize Software From OpenGov For 
Planning And Budgeting And Authorizing The Mayor And City Manager To 
Execute And Deliver Any Documents Necessary To Secure And Implement 
Said Software 

 
MOTION Motion to approve Ordinance Number 3136 was made by Mr. Weaver and 

seconded by Mrs. Cook. 
 
 Mr. Downes stated that this software is needed for accounting purposes. 
 
 The Mayor opened the floor for a public hearing. There being no one further to address 
the Council, the Mayor closed the public hearing and called for the question. Roll call vote was 
as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 

Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes   motion carried. 

 
  



City Council Minutes 
November 28, 2022 

Page 5 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5423 
 
Resolution Number 5423 – Appointing A Member To The Vestavia Hills Parks And 

Recreation Board 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5423 was made by Mrs. Cook and 

seconded by Mr. Pierce. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend the Resolution to include the name of Chad Gay for the 

appointment was made by Mr. Head and seconded by Mr. Weaver.  Roll call 
vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes   motion carried. 

 
There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor called for the question. Roll 

call vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 

Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes   motion carried. 

 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5424 
 
Resolution Number 5424 – Appointing Members To The Vestavia Hills Library Board 
 
 The Mayor passed the gavel to Mr. Weaver. 
 
MOTION Motion to approve Resolution Number 5423 was made by Mrs. Cook and 

seconded by Mr. Pierce. 
 
MOTION Motion to amend the Resolution to include the names of April Jackson MacLennan 

and Susan Swagler for the appointments was made by Mayor Curry and seconded 
by Mr. Weaver.  Roll call vote as follows: 

   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 
Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes   motion carried. 

 
There being no one further to address the Council, the Mayor called for the question. Roll 

call vote was as follows: 
   Mrs. Cook – yes   Mr. Head – yes 

Mr. Pierce – yes   Mr. Weaver – yes  
Mayor Curry – yes   motion carried. 



City Council Minutes 
November 28, 2022 

Page 6 
 

 
NEW BUSINESS (UNANIMOUS CONSENT REQUESTED) 
 
 
FIRST READING (NO ACTION TO BE TAKEN AT THIS MEETING)  

 Public Hearing – Ordinance Number 3127 – Rezoning – 3419 Ronlea Circle; Rezone From 
Vestavia Hills Agriculture To Vestavia Hills R-2 To Combine Parcels To Include Into Two 
Residential Lots; Gladys Bailey, Owners 

Mr. Weaver passed the gavel back to the Mayor. 
 
 

CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

Mayor Curry announced upcoming vacancies for the Design Review Board.  He indicated 
a few vacancies are coming up on that Board and that December 5, 2022, at 5 PM, is the deadline 
for anyone interested in that Board to apply.  

 
Phil Brody 2512 Shades Crest Road, stated he has heard there will be meetings coming 

soon concerning drainage.  Mr. Downes explained and referred him to speak to the City Engineer 
Christopher Brady. 

 
Danny Barrett, Shallowford Circle, thanked Public Works Director Brian Davis and stated 

that Mr. Davis set up a timely meeting to discuss the flooding of his area and, today, he had 
surveyors marking rights-of-way that belong to the City.  He stated that he will meet with Mr. 
Brady soon.  He also thanked the VHPD for helping to resolve some recent issues. 
 
 
 At 6:36 PM, Mrs. Cook made a motion to adjourn.  The meeting adjourned at 6:37 PM. 
 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Resolution Number 5427 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5427 

A RESOLUTION DETERMINING THAT CERTAIN 
PERSONAL PROPERTY IS NOT NEEDED FOR 
PUBLIC OR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES AND 
DIRECTING THE SALE/DISPOSAL OF SAID 
SURPLUS PROPERTY 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, is the owner of personal property 

detailed in the attached “Exhibit A”; and 

WHEREAS, the City has determined that it would be in the best public interest to 

sell or dispose of said property. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to sell or dispose of the above-

referenced surplus personal property; and

2. This Resolution Number 5427 shall become effective immediately upon

adoption and approval.

DONE, ORDERED, APPROVED and ADOPTED on this the 12th day of 

December, 2022. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



Serving Since 1951 

VESTAVIA HILLS FIRE DEPARTMENT 

MEMORANDUM 

TO:  Chief Green 

FROM:  Scott Ferrell 

DATE:  11/28/2022 

RE: Surplus of LP15 

We request the following property to be deemed surplus due to it being at the end of its service life: 

 Lifepak 15 (SN – 39897047), manufactured in 2011, currently assigned to a reserve rescue
truck at station 3. The Lifepak 15 is a cardiac monitor/defibrillator used on all basic and
advanced life support incidents.

The manufacturer will grant trade in credit for a new Lifepak 15 that is budgeted in the 2022-2023 
fiscal year budget.  

Exhibit A - Resolution No. 5427



Ordinance No. 3139 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3139 

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING THE 
CONVEYANCE BY THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA OF 
THE REAL ESTATE AND IMPROVEMENTS SITUATED AT 1973 
MERRYVALE ROAD IN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, 
COMMONLY REFERRED TO AS “THE OLD COMMUNITY CIVIC 
CENTER” (AS MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BELOW) TO THE 
BOARD OF EDUCATION OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA. 

THIS ORDINANCE NUMBER 3139 is approved and adopted by the City Council of 

the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama on this the 12th day of December, 2022. 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, on December 29, 1960, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a municipal 

corporation, (“City”) purchased an unimproved parcel of real estate consisting of approximately 

31.7± acres, which was ultimately named “Wald Park property” by virtue of the deed filed in the 

office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama on April 10, 1961 and recorded at 

Deed 6590, Page 182; and 

WHEREAS, the deed contained certain restrictive covenants that limited the use of the 

Wald Park property to a public park, a park community center, a civic center, a library building, 

a museum and similar municipal buildings for a period of fifty (50) years; and 

WHEREAS, the City has heretofore used the Wald Park property for public park and 

recreational purposes, specifically including, but not limited to, athletic fields and facilities, 

swimming pool, public community civic center, public library, office for the Vestavia Hills 

Chamber of Commerce and other public park and recreational purposes; and 

WHEREAS, approximately 2.27± acres of the Wald Park property were not conducive 

for park and recreational purposes simply because of the topography, location and size and was 

used by the City for the operation of a City Shop and Public Works facility; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Education of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama (“Board”) 

was established by the City on April 30, 1970 upon the approval and adoption of Resolution 

Number 285 on that date; and 

WHEREAS, in 1975, the Board, because of increased enrollment, needed to build a new 

elementary school, but had no property to build on and lacked funds to buy the required property; 

and 



Ordinance No. 3139 
Page 2 

 
 

WHEREAS, Edna Wald and Mildred Wald signed a document on April 13, 1976 entitled 

“Partial Release and Amendment to Restrictive Covenant,” which was filed in the office of the 

Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama on April 20, 1976 and recorded at Real 1289, 

Page 222, which said document released the restrictive covenants to the extent necessary to allow 

a school to be built on a portion (3.71± acres) of the Wald Park property; and 

WHEREAS, on May 17, 1976, the City conveyed to the Board a part of the Wald Park 

property consisting of approximately 3.71± acres by virtue of that certain deed filed in the office 

of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama on May 26, 1976 and recorded at Real 

1303, Page 369; and 

WHEREAS, the Board built West Elementary School on the 3.71± acre site and has 

operated the school thereon since completion of the construction; and 

WHEREAS, the restrictive covenants limiting the use of the Wald Park property for a 

period of fifty (50) years expired on to-wit, April 10, 2011; and 

WHEREAS, in early 2016, the City vacated the 2.27± acre parcel and moved its City 

Shop and Public Works Department to another location; and 

WHEREAS, the City had the 2.27± acre parcel resurveyed into: 

Lot A and Lot B according to the Survey of Wald Park Survey No. 
1, as recorded in Map Book 249, Page 28, in the Probate Office of 
Jefferson County, Alabama; and 
 

WHEREAS, on May 31, 2017, the City purchased from Store Capital Acquisitions, LLC, 

by virtue of that certain Special Warranty Deed filed in the office of the Judge of Probate of 

Jefferson County, Alabama on June 8, 2017 and recorded at Instrument #2017057813, Pages 1-

5, the real estate situated at 1090 Montgomery Highway (commonly referred to as the “Gold’s 

Gym” property) next door to the Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, which said property is more 

particularly described as follows: 

Parcel I:  Lot 2 and Lot 3, according to the Survey of CVS 
Vestavia, as recorded in Map Book 213, Page 31, in the Probate 
Office of Jefferson County, Alabama. 
 
Parcel II: A nonexclusive easement for ingress and egress as set 
out in the Access Easement Agreement as recorded in Instrument 
No. 200408/8594 and assigned by Instrument No. 200602/6382; 
and A perpetual easement for the construction and maintenance of 
a sign as set out in the agreement recorded in Instrument No. 
200408/8593 and assigned by Instrument No. 200602/6381; and 



Ordinance No. 3139 
Page 3 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City purchased the above-described Gold’s Gym property for the 

purpose of developing and constructing a new Vestavia Hills Civic Center consisting of 

approximately one hundred thousand (100,000) square feet of space for public use by the citizens; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City sold Lot A and Lot B according to the Survey of Wald Park Survey 

No. 1, as recorded in Map Book 249, Page 28, to HCI Vestavia I, LLC by virtue of those Statutory 

Warranty Deeds dated January 31, 2019, filed in the office of the Judge of Probate of Jefferson 

County, Alabama on February 1, 2019 and recorded at Instrument #2019009120, Pages 1-9 (Lot 

A) and Instrument #2019009124, Pages 1-9 (Lot B); and 

WHEREAS, Lot A and Lot B as described above have been developed for commercial 

purposes; and 

WHEREAS, on February 4, 2019, the City Manager of the City and the Superintendent 

of the Board recommended a Memorandum of Understanding for Shared Facility Use, Land 

Planning and Funding Between the City and the Board (MOU); and 

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2019, the City Council approved and adopted Ordinance 

Number 2829, which authorized and directed the execution and delivery of the MOU by and 

between the City and Board; and 

WHEREAS, on February 25, 2019, the Board approved and adopted a resolution, which 

authorized and directed the execution and delivery of the MOU by and between the City and the 

Board; and 

WHEREAS, the City and Board engaged Arrington Engineering to resurvey the Wald 

Park property on November 16, 2020; and 

WHEREAS, the Wald Park Survey No. 2 was filed in the office of the Judge of Probate 

on December 22, 2020 and recorded at Instrument #2020146003, Book 254, Page 44; and 

WHEREAS, a copy of said Resurvey is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 1 and is 

incorporated into this Ordinance Number 3139 by reference as though set out fully herein; and 

WHEREAS, the lots in the Wald Park Survey No. 2 filed in the office of the Judge of 

Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama on December 22, 2020 and recorded at Instrument 

#2020146003, BK: 254, Page 44, are owned and presently used as follows: 

  Lot No. Owner  Acreage   Use 

    1  City  20.89  Park and Athletic Facilities 



Ordinance No. 3139 
Page 4 

 
 

    2  City    7.13  Park and Athletic Facilities 

    3  City    4.60  Old Community Civic Center 

    4  Board    3.71  West Elementary School; and 

WHEREAS, the development and construction of the new Vestavia Hills Civic Center 

has been completed and an Open House was held on November 29, 2022 with the facility 

scheduled to have a ribbon cutting ceremony and be open for public use shortly after January 1, 

2023; and 

WHEREAS, the legal description of the Old Community Civic Center is: 

Lot 3 in Wald Park Survey No. 2 filed in the office of the Judge of 
Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama on December 22, 2020 and 
recorded at Instrument #2020146003, Bk: 254, Page 44; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the City has no public need for the Old Community Civic Center now that 

the new Civic Center facility has been completed; and 

 WHEREAS, the Board does have a public need for the Old Community Civic Center; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the City finds and determines that it will promote the general health, 

prosperity and welfare of the citizens of the City of Vestavia Hills by conveying title to the Old 

Community Civic Center property to the Board for public use; and 

WHEREAS, the conveyance of the Old Community Civic Center property by the City to 

the Board will be consistent with the MOU approved by both the City and the Board on February 

25, 2019; and 

 WHEREAS, the City finds and determines that it is in the public interest and a public 

purpose to donate the Old Community Civic Center property to the Board; and 

WHEREAS, Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 1975, provides in words and figures as 

follows: 

“§11-47-20. Unneeded real property; disposition.  The 
governing body of any city or town in this state may, by ordinance 
to be entered on its minutes, direct the disposal of any real property 
not needed for public or municipal purposes and direct the mayor 
to make title thereto, and a conveyance made by the mayor in 
accordance with such ordinance invests the grantee with the title 
of the municipality”; and 
 

 



Ordinance No. 3139 
Page 5 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City Council, by the approval and adoption of this Ordinance Number 

3139 in compliance with Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 1975, finds and determines that the 

Old Community Civic Center property (Lot 3) is no longer needed by the City for public or 

municipal purposes and that it furthers the public interest and welfare for the City to convey by 

gift said property to the Board by the execution and delivery of a Statutory Warranty Deed, a 

copy of which is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 2 and incorporated herein by reference. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

 1. The recitals set forth in the premises above are hereby incorporated into this 

ordinance by reference as though set out fully herein. 

2. The following Exhibits are attached hereto and incorporated into this Ordinance 

Number 3139 by reference as though set out fully herein: 

Exhibit Number    Description 
 

Exhibit 1    Resurvey 
Exhibit 2   Statutory Warranty Deed 

 

 3. The City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama finds and determines that 

the property commonly referred to as the “Old Community Civic Center” property and more 

particularly described as Lot 3 in Wald Park Survey No. 2 filed in the office of the Judge of 

Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama on December 22, 2020 and recorded at Instrument 

#2020146003, Bk: 254, Page 44, is no longer needed for public or municipal purposes as required 

by Title 11-47-20, Code of Alabama, 1975. 

 4. The City Manager and Mayor are hereby authorized and directed to execute and 

deliver the Statutory Warranty Deed (Exhibit 2) conveying the property described in section 3 

above, to the Board of Education of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and to take any and all 

other actions necessary to complete the conveyance as aforesaid. 

5. If any part, section or subdivision of this ordinance shall be held unconstitutional 

or invalid for any reason, such holding shall not be construed to invalidate or impair the 

remainder of this ordinance, which shall continue in full force and effect notwithstanding such 

holding. 



Ordinance No. 3139 
Page 6 

 
 

6. The article and section headings and captions contained herein are included for 

convenience only, and shall not be considered a part hereof or affect in any manner the 

construction or interpretation hereof. 

7. The provisions of this Ordinance Number 3139 shall become effective 

immediately upon the passage, approval and adoption thereof by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama and the publication and/or posting thereof as required by Alabama law. 

ORDAINED, APPROVED, ADOPTED, DONE and ORDERED on this the 12th day 

of December, 2022. 

 
 
       Ashley C. Curry 

Mayor 
ATTESTED BY 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby certify that the 
above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3139 is a true and correct copy of such Ordinance that 
was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills on the 19th day of December, 2022, 
as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, Vestavia Hills 
New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 













RESOLUTION NUMBER 5433 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ISSUE A 
REFUNDS TO THE STATE OF ALABAMA FOR AN ERRONEOUS TAX 
SALE 

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to issue a refund to the State of Alabama in the

amount of $8,510.98 representing proceeds paid from an erroneous tax sale of property

located in the City; and

2. This Resolution number 5433 shall be effective immediately upon adoption and approval.

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 12th day of December, 2022.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Melvin Turner
Sent: Tuesday, December 6, 2022 3:00 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings; Jeff Downes; Zachary J. Clifton
Subject: Refund-State of Alabama
Attachments: Refund-City Council.pdf

Hello Ms. Leavings, 
Please place on the upcoming City Council agenda a request for refund received from the State of Alabama Department 
of Revenue in the amount of $8,510.98. 
The City of Vestavia Hills received the funds and posted receipt of same, Monday, April 25, 2022. 
 
The State of Alabama sold the property for delinquent taxes.  The property reflected a “Market Value” of $80,000.00 
and was sold accordingly.  After a reevaluation of the property and a preliminary hearing, it was discovered that the 
“Market Value is actually $800.00.  The sale of the property valued at $80,000.00 was terminated.   
 
Thank you for your assistance. 
Regards, 
Melvin 
 

 
Melvin Turner, III – Director 
Finance Department 
Off (205) 978‐0128 | Cell (205) 568‐3887 
mturner@vhal.org 
City of Vestavia Hills 
1032 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
 
 









mturner
Highlight



Ordinance Number 3137
 Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3137 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS LAST 
AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF DISTRICT ZONING 
OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS AGRICULTURE TO 
VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 

BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills Agriculture to 

Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential):  

3419 Ronlea Circle 
Gladys Bailey, Owner(s) 

More particularly described as follows:   

Parcel Of Land Located Jn The Ne 1/4 Of The SW 1 /4 And The SE 1/4 Of 
The NW 1/4 of Section 23, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, More 
Particularly Described As Follows: 

Commence At A Found 1" Crimp Pipe At The NW Corner Of Lot 24 Of 
Brentwood Highlands Subdivision Recorded In Map Book 65, Page 22, 
Jefferson County, Alabama; Thence S 01°02'34" E Along The Westerly 
Line Of Said Lot 24, 200.00 Feet To A Set 1/2" Capped Rebar (Ca-1158) 
At The SW Corner Of Said Lot 24 And The Point Of Beginning; Thence N 
56°28'39" E Along The South Line Of Lot 24, 150.40 Feet To A Found 1" 
Crimp Pipe At The SW Corner Of Lot 23; Thence N 56°56'52" E Along 
The South Line Of Lot 23, 139.81 Feet To A Found 1" Crimp Pipe At The 
SW Corner Of Lot 22; Thence N 56°54-'28" E Along The South Line Of 
Lot 22, 49.96 Feet To A Found L" Crimp Pipe; Thence N 50°46'22" E 
Along The South Line Of Lot 22, 54.86 Feet To A Found 1" Crimp Pipe At 
The SW Corner Of Lot 21; Thence N 51°04'03" E Along The South Line 
Of Lot 21, 105.09 Feet To A Found 6'' Row Marker On The North Right Of 
Way Of Interstate ,459; Thence S 41°20’16" W Along Said North Right Of 
Way, 3.95 Feet To A Found 1/2" Capped Rebar (Ca,817); Thence N 
01°02'34" W, 173.68 Feet To The Point Of Beginning. Said Parcel 
Contajning 0.765 Acres More Or Less.  



Ordinance Number 3137
 Page 2 

APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 19th day of November, 2022. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor 

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

CERTIFICATION: 

I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3137 is a true and 
correct copy of such 24th day of October, 2022, as same appears in the official records of 
said City. 

Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New 
Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of 
______________, 2022. 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 





11/17/22, 5:00 PM about:blank

about:blank 1/1

City of Vestavia Hills
Planning and Zoning Commission Review and Recommendation

Case Number: RZ-22-7 Representat
ive: Wes Bertoldi

Owner Name: GLADYS BAILEY Rep.
Address:  

Owner Address: 3425 RONLEA CIR VESTAVIA AL 35243-1633 

Project Address: 3419 Ronlea Cir
Legal Description:  BEG SW COR OF LOT 24 BRENTWOOD HIGHLANDS S 182 S TO N R/W OF I-459 NE 620 S SW 429 S TO P O B 
Parcel ID Number: 28 00 23 3 002 008.000
Current Zoning: A
Requested Zoning: R-2
Intended Purpose: Combine parcels to the north

P&Z
Recommendation:

MOTION       Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend Rezoning for 3419 Ronlea Cir.
from Vestavia Hills A to R-2 as presented. Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was
carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Honeycutt – yes                          Mr. Sykes – yes                                       

Ms. Barnes – yes                                Mr. Larson – yes

Mr. Romeo – yes                                Mr. Maloof– yes                     

Mr. Vercher– yes       

Motion carried.

Date of P&Z
Meeting: November 10, 2022

Authorized by: Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission, Michael
Vercher, Chair

Issued by: Conrad Garrison, City Planner



11/17/22, 4:59 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/4772/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=1011449%2… 1/4

11/17/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

RZ-22-7

Rezoning Application

Agenda Scheduling Information

Property Information

Action Requested:

Setbacks

Status: Active Date Created: Sep 9, 2022

Applicant

Wesley Bertoldi 

wes@soposurv.com 

399 GREGORY RD 

JASPER, AL 35503 

2055226805 

Primary Location

3425 RONLEA CIR 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Owner:

Gladys Bailey 

3425 Ronlea Cir Birmingham, AL 35243

Agenda Schedule

November 2022

Comment/Reschedule/Delay & Reason

--

Subject Property Address

3419 Ronlea Cir

Tax Parcel ID Number

28 00 23 3 002 008.000

Legal Description

 BEG SW COR OF LOT 24 BRENTWOOD HIGHLANDS S 182 S TO N R/W OF I-459 NE 620 S SW 429 S TO P O B

Existing Parking Spaces

--

Proposed Parking Spaces

--

Submission Date

09/09/2022

Type of Project

New Residential Subdivision

From Existing Zoning Classification

A

To Requested Zoning Classification

R-2

For the Intended Purpose of:

Combine parcels to the north

Acreage of Subject Property

0.765

Acreage of Property to be Disturbed

0

Front

--

Back

--



11/17/22, 4:59 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/4772/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=1011449%2… 2/4

Owner Information

Project Engineer Information (if applicable)

Internal Reviews

Side

--

Open Space

--

Lot Coverage Percentage

--

Tree Save Plan - I acknowledge that a if this is a new non-residential development or is a residential development in excess of 3 units, that I

am required to submit a tree save plan concurrent with this application (excludes PUDs).



Applications must be either submitted by the owner of the

property or a representative duly appointed by the owner by way

of a notarized letter and/or power of attorney.

Property Owner Name

GLADYS BAILEY

Company Name

--

Owner Address City State Zip

3425 RONLEA CIR VESTAVIA AL 35243-1633

Owner's Phone Number

205-9605910

Email Address of Owner

RBAILEY@CHARTER.NET

By checking this box, I hereby affirm that I am the representative of the owner duly authorized to represent this petition for rezoning.
Simultaneously with this application, I am submitting notarized documentation from the owner which authorizes me to represent this case. If

no authorization is provided, this application cannot be processed.



Owner Representative/Responsible Party

Wes Bertoldi

Company Name

--

Contact Email of Responsible Party

--

Mailing Address of Responsible Party

--

Phone No. of Responsible Party

--

Email Address of Responsible Party

wes@soposurv.com

Name

--

Company

--

Mailing Address

--

Phone Number

--

Email

--

Date of P&Z Meeting

11/10/2022

P&Z Recommendation & Vote

MOTION       Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend Rezoning for 3419 Ronlea Cir. from Vestavia Hills A to R-2 as presented.

Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:



RESOLUTION NUMBER 5425 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE INSTALLATION OF A NEW 
SUPPORT STRUCTURE FOR A SMALL CELL FACILITY TO BE 
LOCATED IN THE RIGHT-OF-WAY ADJACENT TO CERTAIN 
PROPERTIES IN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 

WHEREAS, on December 17, 2018, the City Council adopted and approved Ordinance 

2814A to adopt regulations for small cell technology facilities (“Nodes”) in the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama; and 

WHEREAS, §2.B.7 recommends that said Nodes shall be collocated when possible, 

however, when not possible the request shall be recommended by the City Manager and then 

approved by the City Council following a public hearing; and 

WHEREAS, on the 11th day of October, 2022, Acquanetta Love, on behalf of Crown 

Castle Fiber, LLC, submitted applications for a new support structure to be located in the right-of-

way (“ROW”) adjacent to the following properties as detailed in Exhibit A which is attached and 

incorporated into this Resolution Number 5425 as if written therein; (1) 1445 Linda Vista Lane, 

(2) 2604 Kingwsood Road, (3) 2733 Southview Drive, (4) 1829 Forest Haven Lane, and (5) 2857

Vestavia Forest Drive; and

WHEREAS, a sign was erected on the ROW and the surrounding property owners were 

notified of a public hearing to be held on December 19, 2022 regarding said new support request; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City Manager and the City Staff have reviewed the application and 

recommend approval of said request; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and the City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept 

the recommendation and authorize installation of said new support structure. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The Mayor and City Council hereby accept the recommendation of the City Manager and

authorize the installation of a new support structure to be located in the ROW adjacent to

(1) 1445 Linda Vista Lane, (2) 2604 Kingwsood Road, (3) 2733 Southview Drive, (4) 1829

Forest Haven Lane, and (5) 2857 Vestavia Forest Drive as detailed in the supporting



information marked as Exhibit A, attached to and incorporated into this Resolution 5425 

as if written fully therein; and 

2. This Resolution shall become effective immediately upon adoption and approval. 

 

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
  



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
1032 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA  35216 

OFFICIAL NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING 

November 28, 2022 

This is an OFFICIAL NOTICE to inform you of the time, date and other details of the 
public hearing which will be held in the Vestavia Hills City Hall on the subject as follows: 

TIME/DATE OF HEARING: 6:00 P.M.     December 19, 2022   Monday  

PLACE OF HEARING:  Vestavia Hills City Hall 
1032 Montgomery Highway 

BOARD: Vestavia Hills City Council 

ACTION REQUESTED: Consideration of Installation of 45’ Utility Pole with 6’6” 
embedment to be placed within the public right-of-way for 
Node Placement, Small Cell Wireless Facility 

LOCATION OF PROPERTY: ROW adjacent to 1445 Linda Vista Lane; See Enclosed 
Details for location and visual 

NAME OF APPLICANT:   Crown Castle Fiber LLC 

REPRESENTED BY: Acquanetta Love 

Sincerely, 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 

INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING SPECIAL SERVICES TO PARTICIPATE IN 
APPLICATIONS, ACTIVITIES, PROGRAMS OR SERVICES ARE REQUESTED TO COORDINATE THEIR 
NEEDS IN ADVANCE, WHEN TIME PERMITS.  IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE REQUIRED, 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK, (205) 978-0179. 

Exhibit A



Exhibit A



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
1032 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA  35216 
 

OFFICIAL NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

November 28, 2022 
 

 
 This is an OFFICIAL NOTICE to inform you of the time, date and other details of the 
public hearing which will be held in the Vestavia Hills City Hall on the subject as follows: 
 
TIME/DATE OF HEARING: 6:00 P.M.     December 19, 2022   Monday  
 
PLACE OF HEARING:  Vestavia Hills City Hall 

1032 Montgomery Highway 
 
BOARD:    Vestavia Hills City Council 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: Consideration of Installation of 45’ Utility Pole with 6’6” 

embedment to be placed within the public right-of-way for 
Node Placement, Small Cell Wireless Facility 
 

LOCATION OF PROPERTY: ROW adjacent to 2604 Kingswood Road; See Enclosed 
Details for location and visual 

         
NAME OF APPLICANT:    Crown Castle Fiber LLC 
 
REPRESENTED BY:  Acquanetta Love 
       

Sincerely, 
 

 
 

      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING SPECIAL SERVICES TO PARTICIPATE IN 
APPLICATIONS, ACTIVITIES, PROGRAMS OR SERVICES ARE REQUESTED TO COORDINATE THEIR 
NEEDS IN ADVANCE, WHEN TIME PERMITS.  IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE REQUIRED, 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK, (205) 978-0179. 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A



 

  

 

Exhibit A



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
1032 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA  35216 
 

OFFICIAL NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

November 28, 2022 
 

 
 This is an OFFICIAL NOTICE to inform you of the time, date and other details of the 
public hearing which will be held in the Vestavia Hills City Hall on the subject as follows: 
 
TIME/DATE OF HEARING: 6:00 P.M.     December 19, 2022   Monday  
 
PLACE OF HEARING:  Vestavia Hills City Hall 

1032 Montgomery Highway 
 
BOARD:    Vestavia Hills City Council 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: Consideration of Installation of 45’ Utility Pole with 6’6” 

embedment to be placed within the public right-of-way for 
Node Placement, Small Cell Wireless Facility 
 

LOCATION OF PROPERTY: ROW adjacent to 2733 Southview Drive; See Enclosed 
Details for location and visual 

         
NAME OF APPLICANT:    Crown Castle Fiber LLC 
 
REPRESENTED BY:  Acquanetta Love 
       

Sincerely, 
 

 
 

      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING SPECIAL SERVICES TO PARTICIPATE IN 
APPLICATIONS, ACTIVITIES, PROGRAMS OR SERVICES ARE REQUESTED TO COORDINATE THEIR 
NEEDS IN ADVANCE, WHEN TIME PERMITS.  IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE REQUIRED, 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK, (205) 978-0179. 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A



 

  
 

Exhibit A



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
1032 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA  35216 
 

OFFICIAL NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

November 28, 2022 
 

 
 This is an OFFICIAL NOTICE to inform you of the time, date and other details of the 
public hearing which will be held in the Vestavia Hills City Hall on the subject as follows: 
 
TIME/DATE OF HEARING: 6:00 P.M.     December 19, 2022   Monday  
 
PLACE OF HEARING:  Vestavia Hills City Hall 

1032 Montgomery Highway 
 
BOARD:    Vestavia Hills City Council 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: Consideration of Installation of 45’ Utility Pole with 6’6” 

embedment to be placed within the public right-of-way for 
Node Placement, Small Cell Wireless Facility 
 

LOCATION OF PROPERTY: ROW adjacent to 1829 Forest Haven Lane; See Enclosed 
Details for location and visual 

         
NAME OF APPLICANT:    Crown Castle Fiber LLC 
 
REPRESENTED BY:  Acquanetta Love 
       

Sincerely, 
 

 
 

      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING SPECIAL SERVICES TO PARTICIPATE IN 
APPLICATIONS, ACTIVITIES, PROGRAMS OR SERVICES ARE REQUESTED TO COORDINATE THEIR 
NEEDS IN ADVANCE, WHEN TIME PERMITS.  IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE REQUIRED, 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK, (205) 978-0179. 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A



 

  
 
 

Exhibit A



CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS 
1032 MONTGOMERY HIGHWAY 

VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA  35216 
 

OFFICIAL NOTICE OF A PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 

November 28, 2022 
 

 
 This is an OFFICIAL NOTICE to inform you of the time, date and other details of the 
public hearing which will be held in the Vestavia Hills City Hall on the subject as follows: 
 
TIME/DATE OF HEARING: 6:00 P.M.     December 19, 2022   Monday  
 
PLACE OF HEARING:  Vestavia Hills City Hall 

1032 Montgomery Highway 
 
BOARD:    Vestavia Hills City Council 
 
ACTION REQUESTED: Consideration of Installation of 45’ Utility Pole with 6’6” 

embedment to be placed within the public right-of-way for 
Node Placement, Small Cell Wireless Facility 
 

LOCATION OF PROPERTY: ROW adjacent to 2857 Vestavia Forest Drive; See Enclosed 
Details for location and visual 

         
NAME OF APPLICANT:    Crown Castle Fiber LLC 
 
REPRESENTED BY:  Acquanetta Love 
       

Sincerely, 
 

 
 

      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES NEEDING SPECIAL SERVICES TO PARTICIPATE IN 
APPLICATIONS, ACTIVITIES, PROGRAMS OR SERVICES ARE REQUESTED TO COORDINATE THEIR 
NEEDS IN ADVANCE, WHEN TIME PERMITS.  IF SPECIAL ACCOMMODATIONS ARE REQUIRED, 
PLEASE CONTACT THE CITY CLERK, (205) 978-0179. 
 
 
 
 
 

Exhibit A



 

  
 

Exhibit A



Resolution Number 5426 
Page 1 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 5426 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE DEDICATION OF THE STREETS IN 
HELEN RIDGE KNOWN AS HELEN RIDGE CIRCLE AND HELEN 
RIDGE DRIVE 

 WHEREAS, Harris Doyle Homes is the developer for Helen Ridge in Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama.  This dedication consists of the streets named “Helen Ridge Circle and Helen Ridge 

Drive”; such dedication not to include any improvements other than the streets named in this 

Resolution. 

 WHEREAS, the streets were built according to the Vestavia Hills specifications and the 

development company is presenting them to the City of Vestavia Hills for acceptance complete 

with a guarantee against any defects for a period of one (1) year from date of dedication. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, that the City hereby accepts the offer of dedication made 

by Harris Doyle Homes for Helen Ridge and said streets are hereby named public streets. 

ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 19th day of December, 2022. 

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Jerry Howard <jerry.howard@harrisdoyle.com>
Sent: Friday, December 2, 2022 2:29 PM
To: Rebecca Leavings
Cc: Lori Beth Kearley; Christopher Brady; Brooks Harris
Subject: [External] Helen Ridge Street Dedication
Attachments: Helen Ridge Final Plat Recorded w_all pages.pdf

Ms. Leavings,

I am writing requesting that the Streets and Right of ways for the Helen Ridge development be dedicated to the City of
Vestavia at the earliest possible time. All improvements covered by the bond have been completed and Harris Doyle is
requesting the release of the bond upon dedication. I have attached the recorded plat for the Helen Ridge subdivision
for your reference.

I appreciate your consideration of this request. Please let me know if I can provide any additional information.

Thank you,

 
Jerry Howard  
Director of Land Development  
(O) 205.982.2896 x 106
(C) 205.240.7100
(E) jerry.howard@harrisdoyle.com 
3111 Timberlake Drive, Birmingham, AL 35243 

 www.harrisdoyle.com 
 

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5426



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5426



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5426



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5426



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5426



Ordinance Number 3138 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3138 

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING A BID FOR STREET RESURFACING AND 
REPAIR IN THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS  

WHEREAS, on November 29, 2022 at 1:00 PM the City of Vestavia Hills publicly read 

aloud bids submitted for street repair and resurfacing in the City of Vestavia Hills with five bids 

received; and 

WHEREAS, the Public Services Director has reviewed the bids, detailed them in an Bid 

Tabulation and email to the City Manager dated December 6, 2022 and recommended acceptance 

of the bid submitted by Central Alabama Asphalt & Construction Company.  A copy of said Bid 

Tabulation and email are marked as Exhibit A attached to and incorporated into this Ordinance 

Number 3138 as if written fully therein; and 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council feel it is in the best public interest to accept the 

recommendation of the Public Services Director and accept said bid as detailed in Exhibit A. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 

OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The bid submitted by Central Alabama Asphalt & Construction Company as detailed in

attached Exhibit A and recommended by the Public Services Director, is hereby accepted;

and

2. The Mayor and City Manager are hereby authorized to execute and deliver a construction

agreement, a copy of which is marked as Exhibit B, attached to and incorporated into this

Ordinance Number 3138 as if written fully therein; and

3. This Ordinance Number 3138 shall become effective immediately upon adoption and

approval.

DONE, ORDERED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this the 19th day of December, 2022.

Ashley C. Curry 
Mayor  

ATTESTED BY: 

Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 



1

Rebecca Leavings

From: Brian Davis
Sent: Tuesday, December 6, 2022 12:19 PM
To: Jeff Downes; Rebecca Leavings
Cc: Christopher Brady; Lori Beth Kearley
Subject: Paving contractor Bid award
Attachments: Bid Tab_Residential Street Resurfacing_2022.pdf

Jeff, the attached shows the results of the paving bid.  We would like to get this on the council agenda for a first read 
next Monday night for approval of Central Alabama Asphalt & Construction Company, LLC as the most responsible low 
bidder.   
 
Christopher, Lori Beth and I will be meeting with them as soon as possible.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  
 
“When a train goes through a tunnel and it gets dark, you don’t throw away the ticket and jump off.  You sit 
still and trust the engineer.” 
Corrie ten Boom 

 
 
Brian C. Davis, CPSI 
Director of Engineering and Public Works 
1032 Montgomery Highway 
Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 
P 205 978 0150 | vhal.org 

   
 

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3138



Ci
ty
of
Ve
st
av
ia
H
ill
s

20
22

Re
sid

en
tia

lS
tr
ee
tR

es
ur
fa
ci
ng

BI
D
O
PE

NI
N
G:

No
ve
m
be

r2
9,
20

22
,1
pm

BI
D
TA

BU
LA

TI
O
N

Bi
dd

er
No

.1
Bi
dd

er
No

.2
Bi
dd

er
No

.3
Bi
dd

er
No

.4
Bi
dd

er
No

.5

ite
m

un
it

bi
d
qt
y

un
it
pr
ice

to
ta
l

un
it
pr
ice

to
ta
l

un
it
pr
ice

to
ta
l

un
it
pr
ice

to
ta
l

un
it
pr
ice

to
ta
l

Se
al
**

to
n

27
,5
00

12
9.
80

$
3,
56

9,
50

0.
00

$
14

3.
25

$
3,
93

9,
37

5.
00

$
12

9.
00

$
3,
54

7,
50

0.
00

$
12

7.
80

$
3,
51

4,
50

0.
00

$
13

8.
65

$
3,
81

2,
87

5.
00

$
Bi
nd

er
**

to
n

27
5

17
2.
00

$
47

,3
00

.0
0

$
35

3.
25

$
97

,1
43

.7
5

$
16

0.
00

$
44

,0
00

.0
0

$
25

2.
50

$
69

,4
37

.5
0

$
27

6.
00

$
75

,9
00

.0
0

$
Ta
ck

Co
at
**

ga
l

30
,0
00

6.
50

$
19

5,
00

0.
00

$
3.
55

$
10

6,
50

0.
00

$
8.
50

$
25

5,
00

0.
00

$
5.
05

$
15

1,
50

0.
00

$
5.
25

$
15

7,
50

0.
00

$
M
ill
in
g

to
n

32
,5
00

48
.1
0

$
1,
56

3,
25

0.
00

$
41

.7
5

$
1,
35

6,
87

5.
00

$
56

.0
0

$
1,
82

0,
00

0.
00

$
42

.5
0

$
1,
38

1,
25

0.
00

$
59

.2
5

$
1,
92

5,
62

5.
00

$
St
rip

in
g

m
i

7
4,
25

0.
00

$
29

,7
50

.0
0

$
3,
85

0.
00

$
26

,9
50

.0
0

$
3,
65

0.
00

$
25

,5
50

.0
0

$
3,
50

0.
00

$
24

,5
00

.0
0

$
3,
55

0.
00

$
24

,8
50

.0
0

$
Te
m
p.
St
rip

in
g

m
i

7
1,
50

0.
00

$
10

,5
00

.0
0

$
1,
30

0.
00

$
9,
10

0.
00

$
1,
25

0.
00

$
8,
75

0.
00

$
1,
20

0.
00

$
8,
40

0.
00

$
1,
20

0.
00

$
8,
40

0.
00

$
Pe

rm
an
en

tM
ar
ki
ng
s

sf
6,
00

0
6.
50

$
39

,0
00

.0
0

$
7.
10

$
42

,6
00

.0
0

$
7.
00

$
42

,0
00

.0
0

$
6.
60

$
39

,6
00

.0
0

$
6.
55

$
39

,3
00

.0
0

$
Tr
af
fic

Lo
op

s
lf

5,
00

0
7.
65

$
38

,2
50

.0
0

$
5.
30

$
26

,5
00

.0
0

$
5.
00

$
25

,0
00

.0
0

$
5.
00

$
25

,0
00

.0
0

$
5.
00

$
25

,0
00

.0
0

$
Ra

ise
M
an
ho

le
s

ea
20

0
27

5.
00

$
55

,0
00

.0
0

$
25

0.
00

$
50

,0
00

.0
0

$
17

0.
00

$
34

,0
00

.0
0

$
30

0.
00

$
60

,0
00

.0
0

$
24

5.
00

$
49

,0
00

.0
0

$
Va

lv
e
Bo

x
Re

se
ts

ea
50

42
.0
0

$
2,
10

0.
00

$
17

5.
00

$
8,
75

0.
00

$
45

.0
0

$
2,
25

0.
00

$
10

0.
00

$
5,
00

0.
00

$
65

.0
0

$
3,
25

0.
00

$
To

ta
lB

id
Pr
ic
e

5,
54

9,
65

0.
00

$
5,
66

3,
79

3.
75

$
5,
80

4,
05

0.
00

$
5,
27

9,
18

7.
50

$
6,
12

1,
70

0.
00

$

Bi
d
Bo

nd
?

ye
s

no
ye
s

no
ye
s

no
ye
s

no
ye
s

no
Co

nt
ra
ct
or
's
Lic

en
se

Nu
m
be

r?
ye
s

no
ye
s

no
ye
s

no
ye
s

no
ye
s

no
Bi
d
do

cu
m
en

tn
ot
ar
ize

d?
ye
s

no
ye
s

no
ye
s

no
ye
s

no
ye
s

no

M
as
se
y
As
ph

al
tP

av
in
g
LL
C

Du
nn

Co
ns
tr
uc
tio

n
W
ire

gr
as
sC

on
st
ru
ct
io
n
Co

m
pa

ny
Ce

nt
ra
lA

la
ba

m
a
As
ph

al
t&

Co
ns
tr
uc
tio

n
Co

.,
LL
C

M
id
so
ut
h
Pa

vi
ng

In
c.

Exhibit A - Ordinance No. 3138



Page 1 of 8 

STATE OF ALABAMA 
 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 
 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT 
 
 WITNESSETH THIS CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT, made and entered into on 
this the ______ day of __________________, 2022, by and between the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, a municipal corporation, organized, existing and operating pursuant to the laws of the 
State of Alabama situated at 1032 Montgomery Highway, Vestavia Hills, Alabama 35216, 
hereinafter referred to as the “City”, and _________________________________________, 
hereinafter referred to as the “General Contractor,” whose principal place of business is situated 
at _______________________________________________________________________. 
 

WITNESSETH THESE RECITALS: 
 
 WHEREAS, on the ___29th___ day of ____November___________, 2022, the City 
invited competitive bids for public street resurfacing for a period of three (3) years; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the scope of the work constitutes a “public works” project within the 
meaning of Act No. 97-225 enacted by the Legislature of the State of Alabama effective April 
22, 1997 and now codified as Title 39, Chapters 1 through 5, et seq., Code of Alabama, 1975, 
hereinafter referred to as the “Public Works” Law of Alabama; and  
   
 WHEREAS, on the ______ day of __________________, 2022, the City Council of the 
City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama determined that the General Contractor submitted the lowest 
responsible and responsive bid and awarded the contract for the public works project to the 
General Contractor; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City and the General Contractor have agreed to the terms, provisions 
and conditions of this Construction Contract and have further agreed that it is in the best interest 
of the parties that this contract be reduced to writing. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS:  That in 
consideration of the mutual covenants, premises and promises contained herein and other good 
and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by each of the parties 
hereto, the City and General Contractor mutually agree as follows: 
 
I. PUBLIC WORKS LAW 
 
 Notwithstanding any other laws to the contrary, Act No. 97-225, which is set forth in 
Title 39, Chapters 1 through 5, of the Code of Alabama, 1975, (“Public Works Law”) shall 
control the interpretation, construction, administration and enforcement of this Construction 
Contract.  Both the City and the General Contractor agree that any and all terms, provisions, 
conditions and limitations of the said Public Works Law shall be and are hereby incorporated 
into this Construction Contract by reference as though set out fully herein. 

Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3138



Page 2 of 8 

 
II. INVITATION TO BID 
 
 The Invitation to Bid prepared by the City and submitted to the Contractor is attached 
hereto, marked as Exhibit 1 and is incorporated into this Construction Contract by reference as 
though set out fully herein. 
 
III. BID BY GENERAL CONTRACTOR 
 
 The bid by General Contractor submitted to the City is attached hereto, marked as Exhibit 
2 and is incorporated into this Construction Contract by reference as though set out fully herein. 
 
IV. GENERAL CONTRACTOR 
 
 General Contractor represents, covenants and warrants that it is a licensed general 
contractor within the meaning of Title 34-8-1, Code of Alabama, 1975.  Said General Contractor 
further represents that it is duly licensed and qualified to furnish the materials and supplies and 
perform the work of the public works project. 
 
V. SCOPE OF THE WORK 
 
 The General Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, taxes, insurance (worker’s 
compensation and general liability) as follows:  
Asphalt repair and resurfacing_____________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
VI. CONTRACT PRICE 
 
 The City shall pay to the General Contractor for the faithful performance of this contract 
and the completion of the work described in paragraph II above in an amount calculated in 
accordance with the bid marked as Exhibit 2. 
 
VII. PAYMENT OF CONTRACT PRICE 
 
 The City shall pay to the General Contractor the contract price in full upon completion of 
the work described in paragraph II hereof. 
 
VIII. CONTRACT TIME 
 
 The contract time is ninety (90) calendar days.  General Contractor shall commence work 
after the City issues a proceed to work order and shall complete the work described in paragraph 
II hereof within ninety (90) days thereafter. 
 
IX. QUALITY OF WORK 
 
 All labor, construction and installation of materials installed by the General Contractor in 
the performance of this agreement shall be done in a workmanlike manner. 

Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3138



Page 3 of 8 

 
X. LIABILITY INSURANCE 
 
 The General Contractor shall carry Manufacturer’s and Contractor’s Public Liability 
Insurance with limits of Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00), per person, and One 
Million Dollars ($1,000,000.00), per occurrence, to cover and protect the City, the General 
Contractor and its subcontractors against claims or injury to or death of one or more than one 
person because of accidents which may occur or result from operations under the contract; such 
insurance shall cover the use of any and all equipment, including but not limited to machinery, 
tractors, rollers, mixers, motor vehicles and other related equipment necessary to perform the 
work and installations and embraced in this contract. 
 
 The General Contractor shall carry, during the life of this contract, property damage 
insurance in the amount of not less than Three Hundred Thousand Dollars ($300,000.00) to 
protect it and its subcontractors from claims for property damage which might arise from the 
work performed under this contract. 
 
 Before commencing work, the General Contractor shall submit evidence of the coverage 
required above to the City for review and approval.  Such insurance shall be carried with 
financially responsible insurance companies, licensed in the state and approved by the City and 
shall be kept in full force and effect until the General Contractor’s work is accepted by the City.  
Contracts of insurance (covering all operations under this contract) which expire before the 
General Contractor’s work is accepted by the City shall be renewed and evidence of such 
renewal shall be submitted to the City for its approval. 
 
 The policy shall name the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as Owner, and its public 
officials and employees, and its agents, consultants and employees as additional insureds and 
state that this coverage shall be primary insurance for the additional insureds. 
 
XI. WORKER’S COMPENSATION 
 
 The General Contractor shall carry Worker’s Compensation insurance for all of its 
employees and those of its subcontractors engaged in the work at the site in accordance with the 
State of Alabama Worker’s Compensation Law.  This insurance coverage provided by the 
General Contractor under the Worker’s Compensation Act shall provide protection from any and 
all claims for bodily injury, death or property damage, which may arise from the performance of 
any servant, agent, employee or other representative of General Contractor or its subcontractors 
under this agreement.  Certificates of insurance issued by competent insurance companies 
qualified and licensed to do business in the State of Alabama and approved by the City 
evidencing that all of said subcontractors of the General Contractor are covered by said Worker’s 
Compensation insurance coverage and furnished to the General Contractor and the City by the 
individual subcontractors shall meet the requirements of this section. 
 
XII. INDEMNITY 
 
 The General Contractor shall indemnify and save harmless the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, its Mayor, individual members of the City Council, servants, agents, employees or 
representatives from any and all claims, demands, controversies, actions, causes of action, 

Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3138



Page 4 of 8 

liabilities of action, lawsuits, liabilities and damages arising out of or resulting from property 
damage, personal injury and/or death suffered or alleged to have been suffered by any person as 
a result for work performed under this contract. 
 
XIII. INDEPENDENT GENERAL CONTRACTOR 
 
 The General Contractor is an independent contractor for purposes of this agreement.  
Nothing contained herein shall be construed to mean that said General Contractor is the servant, 
agent or employee of the City. 
 
XIV. ASSIGNMENT 
 
 This contract shall not be assignable by the General Contractor in any respect without 
having first obtained the written consent of the City evidenced by a properly enacted resolution 
of the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 
 
XV. PERMITS, LAWS, CODES AND ORDINANCES 
 
 The General Contractor shall give all notices required by and comply with all applicable 
laws, ordinances and codes of the local, state and federal governments. 
 
XVI. BONDS 
 
 In accordance with Title 39-1-1, Code of Alabama, 1975, the General Contractor agrees 
to execute a performance bond with penalty equal to one hundred (100%) percent of the amount 
of the Contract price, and in addition thereto, another bond with good and sufficient surety 
payable to the City in an amount not less than fifty percent (50%) of the contract price with the 
obligation that such General Contractor shall promptly make payments to all persons supplying it 
with the labor, materials, equipment or supplies for and in the prosecution of the work provided 
for in this Contract and for the payment of reasonable attorney’s fees incurred by successful 
claimants or plaintiffs in civil actions on said bond. 
 
 A copy of the said performance bond shall be marked as Exhibit 3, attached hereto and 
incorporated and made a part of the contract as though set out fully herein.  A copy of the labor 
and material bond shall be designated as Exhibit 4 attached hereto and incorporated and made a 
part of this contract as though set out fully herein. 
 
XVII. ACCIDENT PREVENTION 
 
 The General Contractor shall exercise proper precaution at all times for the protection of 
persons and property and shall be responsible for all damages to person or property, either on or 
off the site, which occur as a result of its prosecution of the work.  The safety provisions of 
applicable laws and building and construction codes shall be observed.  Machinery, equipment 
and all hazards shall be guarded in accordance with the safety provisions of the Manual of 
Accident Prevention in Construction published by the Associated General Contractors of 
America, Inc., to the extent that such provisions are not in conflict with applicable local, state or 
federal laws.   
 

Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3138



Page 5 of 8 

XVIII. SUBCONTRACTORS 
 
 No proposed subcontractor shall be disapproved by the City, except for cause. 
 
 The General Contractor shall be fully responsible to the City for the acts and omissions of 
its subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by said subcontractors, as 
it is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by it. 
 
 The General Contractor shall cause appropriate provision to be inserted in all 
subcontracts relative to the work to require compliance by each subcontractor with the applicable 
provisions of the Contract for the improvements embraced in the project. 
 
 Nothing contained in the Contract shall create any contractual relation between any 
subcontractor and the City. 
 
 The General Contractor shall pay all subcontractors for materials and supplies installed in 
this project by said subcontractors and all work and labor performed by said subcontractors on 
said project. 
 
XIX. INSPECTION 
 
 All materials and workmanship shall be subject to inspection, examination or test by the 
City at any and all times during installation or construction and at any and all places where such 
manufacture or construction is carried on.  The City shall have the right to reject defective 
materials and workmanlike and/or require its correction.  Unacceptable workmanship shall be 
satisfactorily corrected.  Rejected material shall be promptly segregated and removed from the 
project area and be replaced with material of specified quality without charge therefor.  If the 
General Contractor fails to proceed at once with the correction of rejected workmanship or 
defective material, the City may contract for or otherwise have the defects remedied or rejected 
materials removed from the project area and charge the cost of the same against any moneys 
which may be due the Contractor, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of the City. 
 
XX. TERMINATION 
 
 The Contract, of which scope of work described in paragraph II hereof form a part, may 
be annulled by the City for any one of the following reasons: 
 
 A. Substantial evidence that the progress made by the General Contractor is 
insufficient to complete the work within the specified time. 
 
 B. Deliberate failure on the part of the General Contractor to observe the 
requirements of this Contract. 
 
 C. Failure on the part of the General Contractor to promptly make good any defects 
in materials or workmanship that may be indicated to it by the City. 
 
 D. Any other breach of contract by the General Contractor. 
 

Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3138



Page 6 of 8 

XXI. GENERAL GUARANTY BY GENERAL CONTRACTOR

Neither the final certificate of payment nor any provision in the Contract nor partial or
entire use of the improvements embraced in this Contract by the City or the public shall 
constitute an acceptance of work not done in accordance with the Contract or relieve the General 
Contractor of liability in respect to any express warranties of responsibility for faulty materials or 
workmanship.  The General Contractor shall promptly remedy any defects in the work and pay 
for any damage to other work resulting therefrom which shall appear within a period of twelve 
(12) months from the date of final acceptance of the work.  The City will give notice of defective
material and work with reasonable promptness.

XXII. REMOVAL OF DEBRIS AND CLEANING

The General Contractor shall, periodically or as directed during the progress of the work,
remove and legally dispose of all surplus material and debris, and keep the Project Area and 
public rights of way reasonable clear.  Upon completion of the work, it shall remove all 
temporary construction facilities, debris and unused materials provided for the work, and put the 
whole site of the work and public rights of way in a neat and clean condition.  

XXIII. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Non-Waiver:  The failure of the City to insist, in any one or more instances, upon
a strict performance of any of the covenants of this contract, or to exercise any option herein 
contained, shall not be construed as a waiver, or a relinquishment for the future of such covenant 
or option, but the same shall continue and remain in full force and effect. 

B. Waiver of Modification:  Any waiver, alteration or modification of any of the
provisions of this agreement or cancellation or replacement of this agreement shall not be valid 
unless in writing and signed by the parties hereto.  This agreement may be amended at any time 
by written agreement of the parties signatory hereto. 

C. Notices: Any and all notices required or permitted to be given under this
agreement will be sufficient if furnished in writing and sent by Registered Mail to the parties’ 
last known address. 

D. Governing Law:  This agreement shall be interpreted, construed and governed to
the laws of the State of Alabama. 

E. Article and Section Headings:  The article and section headings and captions
contained herein are included for convenience only, and shall not be considered a part hereof or 
affect in any manner the construction or interpretation hereof. 

F. Execution in Counterparts:  The contract may be executed in several
counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the 
same instrument. 

G. Binding Effect:  The contract shall inure to the benefit of, and shall be binding
upon City and General Contractor and their heirs, successors and assigns. 

Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3138



Page 7 of 8 

H. Severability:  In the event any provision of this contract shall be held invalid or
unenforceable by any court of competent jurisdiction, such holding shall not invalidate or render 
unenforceable any other provision hereof. 

I. Entire Agreement:  This written contract contains the entire agreement between
the City and the General Contractor. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama and 
______________________________ have caused this agreement to be executed by their duly 
authorized officers and their respective seals to be affixed hereto on this the _____ day of 
________________, 2022. 

CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA 

By_______________________________________ 
Its Mayor 

ATTESTED 

By____________________________________ 

By_______________________________________ 
Its City Manager 

ATTESTED 

By____________________________________ 

__________________________________________ 

By_______________________________________ 
Its President 

ATTESTED: 

By_____________________________________ 

Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3138



Page 8 of 8 

STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that Ashley Curry, whose name as Mayor of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, a 
municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing contract, and who is known to me, 
acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the contract, he, as 
such officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said City 
of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 
 
 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _____ day of ________________, 2022. 
 
      __________________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that Jeffrey D. Downes, whose name as City Manager of the City of Vestavia Hills, 
Alabama, a municipal corporation, is signed to the foregoing contract, and who is known to me, 
acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the contract, he, as 
such officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of said City 
of Vestavia Hills, Alabama. 
 
 Given under my hand and official seal, this the _____ day of ________________, 2022. 
 
      __________________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
 
STATE OF ALABAMA 
JEFFERSON COUNTY 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 I, the undersigned authority, a Notary Public in and for said County, in said State, hereby 
certify that _________________________________ whose name as ____________________ of 
__________________________________ is signed to the foregoing contract, and who is known 
to me, acknowledged before me on this day that, being informed of the contents of the contract, 
(s)he, as such officer and with full authority, executed the same voluntarily for and as the act of 
said __________________________________. 
 
 Given under my hand and official seal, this the ________ day of ________________, 
2022. 
 
      __________________________________________ 
       Notary Public 
 

Exhibit B - Ordinance No. 3138



Ordinance Number 3137 
Page 1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3137 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO FURTHER AMEND THE ZONING ORDINANCE 
AND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, ADOPTED SEPTEMBER 16, 1985, AND AS LAST 
AMENDED SO AS TO CHANGE THE CLASS OF DISTRICT ZONING 
OF PROPERTY FROM VESTAVIA HILLS AGRICULTURE TO 
VESTAVIA HILLS R-2 

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

as follows:  That the Zoning Ordinance and Zoning Map of the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, adopted September 16, 1985, and as last amended so as to change the class of 

district zoning of the following described property from Vestavia Hills Agriculture to 

Vestavia Hills R-2 (medium density residential):  

3419 Ronlea Circle 
Gladys Bailey, Owner(s) 

 
More particularly described as follows:   
 

Parcel Of Land Located Jn The Ne 1/4 Of The SW 1 /4 And The SE 1/4 Of 
The NW 1/4 of Section 23, Township 18 South, Range 2 West, More 
Particularly Described As Follows: 
 
Commence At A Found 1" Crimp Pipe At The NW Corner Of Lot 24 Of 
Brentwood Highlands Subdivision Recorded In Map Book 65, Page 22, 
Jefferson County, Alabama; Thence S 01°02'34" E Along The Westerly 
Line Of Said Lot 24, 200.00 Feet To A Set 1/2" Capped Rebar (Ca-1158) 
At The SW Corner Of Said Lot 24 And The Point Of Beginning; Thence N 
56°28'39" E Along The South Line Of Lot 24, 150.40 Feet To A Found 1" 
Crimp Pipe At The SW Corner Of Lot 23; Thence N 56°56'52" E Along 
The South Line Of Lot 23, 139.81 Feet To A Found 1" Crimp Pipe At The 
SW Corner Of Lot 22; Thence N 56°54-'28" E Along The South Line Of 
Lot 22, 49.96 Feet To A Found L" Crimp Pipe; Thence N 50°46'22" E 
Along The South Line Of Lot 22, 54.86 Feet To A Found 1" Crimp Pipe At 
The SW Corner Of Lot 21; Thence N 51°04'03" E Along The South Line 
Of Lot 21, 105.09 Feet To A Found 6'' Row Marker On The North Right Of 
Way Of Interstate ,459; Thence S 41°20’16" W Along Said North Right Of 
Way, 3.95 Feet To A Found 1/2" Capped Rebar (Ca,817); Thence N 
01°02'34" W, 173.68 Feet To The Point Of Beginning. Said Parcel 
Contajning 0.765 Acres More Or Less.  

 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3137 
Page 2 

 
APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 19th day of November, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3137 is a true and correct 
copy of such 24th day of October, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills City Hall, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, New Merkle 
House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ day of ______________, 
2022. 
 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 

 





11/17/22, 5:00 PM about:blank

about:blank 1/1

City of Vestavia Hills
Planning and Zoning Commission Review and Recommendation

Case Number: RZ-22-7 Representat
ive: Wes Bertoldi

Owner Name: GLADYS BAILEY Rep.
Address:  

Owner Address: 3425 RONLEA CIR VESTAVIA AL 35243-1633 

Project Address: 3419 Ronlea Cir
Legal Description:  BEG SW COR OF LOT 24 BRENTWOOD HIGHLANDS S 182 S TO N R/W OF I-459 NE 620 S SW 429 S TO P O B 
Parcel ID Number: 28 00 23 3 002 008.000
Current Zoning: A
Requested Zoning: R-2
Intended Purpose: Combine parcels to the north

P&Z
Recommendation:

MOTION       Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend Rezoning for 3419 Ronlea Cir.
from Vestavia Hills A to R-2 as presented. Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was
carried on a roll call; vote as follows:

Mr. Honeycutt – yes                          Mr. Sykes – yes                                       

Ms. Barnes – yes                                Mr. Larson – yes

Mr. Romeo – yes                                Mr. Maloof– yes                     

Mr. Vercher– yes       

Motion carried.

Date of P&Z
Meeting: November 10, 2022

Authorized by: Vestavia Hills Planning and Zoning Commission, Michael
Vercher, Chair

Issued by: Conrad Garrison, City Planner



11/17/22, 4:59 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/4772/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=1011449%2… 1/4

11/17/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

RZ-22-7

Rezoning Application

Agenda Scheduling Information

Property Information

Action Requested:

Setbacks

Status: Active Date Created: Sep 9, 2022

Applicant

Wesley Bertoldi 

wes@soposurv.com 

399 GREGORY RD 

JASPER, AL 35503 

2055226805 

Primary Location

3425 RONLEA CIR 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Owner:

Gladys Bailey 

3425 Ronlea Cir Birmingham, AL 35243

Agenda Schedule

November 2022

Comment/Reschedule/Delay & Reason

--

Subject Property Address

3419 Ronlea Cir

Tax Parcel ID Number

28 00 23 3 002 008.000

Legal Description

 BEG SW COR OF LOT 24 BRENTWOOD HIGHLANDS S 182 S TO N R/W OF I-459 NE 620 S SW 429 S TO P O B

Existing Parking Spaces

--

Proposed Parking Spaces

--

Submission Date

09/09/2022

Type of Project

New Residential Subdivision

From Existing Zoning Classification

A

To Requested Zoning Classification

R-2

For the Intended Purpose of:

Combine parcels to the north

Acreage of Subject Property

0.765

Acreage of Property to be Disturbed

0

Front

--

Back

--



11/17/22, 4:59 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/4772/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=1011449%2… 2/4

Owner Information

Project Engineer Information (if applicable)

Internal Reviews

Side

--

Open Space

--

Lot Coverage Percentage

--

Tree Save Plan - I acknowledge that a if this is a new non-residential development or is a residential development in excess of 3 units, that I

am required to submit a tree save plan concurrent with this application (excludes PUDs).



Applications must be either submitted by the owner of the

property or a representative duly appointed by the owner by way

of a notarized letter and/or power of attorney.

Property Owner Name

GLADYS BAILEY

Company Name

--

Owner Address City State Zip

3425 RONLEA CIR VESTAVIA AL 35243-1633

Owner's Phone Number

205-9605910

Email Address of Owner

RBAILEY@CHARTER.NET

By checking this box, I hereby affirm that I am the representative of the owner duly authorized to represent this petition for rezoning.
Simultaneously with this application, I am submitting notarized documentation from the owner which authorizes me to represent this case. If

no authorization is provided, this application cannot be processed.



Owner Representative/Responsible Party

Wes Bertoldi

Company Name

--

Contact Email of Responsible Party

--

Mailing Address of Responsible Party

--

Phone No. of Responsible Party

--

Email Address of Responsible Party

wes@soposurv.com

Name

--

Company

--

Mailing Address

--

Phone Number

--

Email

--

Date of P&Z Meeting

11/10/2022

P&Z Recommendation & Vote

MOTION       Mr. Larson made a motion to recommend Rezoning for 3419 Ronlea Cir. from Vestavia Hills A to R-2 as presented.

Second was by Mr. Romeo. Motion was carried on a roll call; vote as follows:



Resolution Number 5428 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5428 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated June 20, 2022, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous to 

the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 19th day of December, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

21st day of December, 2022. 

 2.  That on the 27th day of March, 2023, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5428 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5428 
Page 2 

 
2608 Rillwood Road 
Lot 9, Altadena Park 

Andrew and Marie Davis, Owner(s) 
 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Exhibit - Resolution 5428 
2608 Rillwood Rd



Exhibit - Resolution 5428 
2608 Rillwood Rd



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor Notes

====>  2608 Rillwood Rd Property Address

====>   $                                                           529,800  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$52,980.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor Notes

$1,088.74 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$1,523.18 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$2,611.91 Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE CITY

$800.00 SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE) SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)

$434.44 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$1,088.74 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$2,757.61 Annexation Revenue to BOE SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion) (8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$3,846.35 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

Exhibit - Resolution 5428 
2608 Rillwood Rd



Exhibit - Resolution 5428 
2608 Rillwood Rd



Exhibit - Resolution 5428 
2608 Rillwood Rd



11/1/22, 1:33 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5438/26364/printable 1/1

11/01/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

ANX-22-1

Engineering/Public Works Review

Annexation Application

Comments

Christopher Brady, Oct 31, 2022 at 2:54pm

minor concerns noted related to active construction and lack of bmp protection; will check permit

status with Jefferson County and coordinate final reviews and inspections; roadway and valley

gutter is in fair condition; the City currently has a split maintenance responsibility with Jefferson

County for this section of roadway.

Status: Complete

Assignee: Christopher Brady

Became Active: 10/11/2022

Completed: 10/31/2022

Applicant

Andrew Davis 

andy.ironcity@gmail.com 

2608 Rillwood Road 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35243 

205-790-5778  

Primary Location

2608 RILLWOOD RD 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Exhibit - Resolution 5428 
2608 Rillwood Rd



11/1/22, 1:32 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5438/26367/printable 1/1

11/01/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

ANX-22-1

Board of Education Review

Annexation Application

Comments

Scott Brown, Nov 1, 2022 at 1:30pm

No Objection

Status: Complete

Assignee: Scott Brown

Became Active: 10/11/2022

Completed: 11/01/2022

Applicant

Andrew Davis 

andy.ironcity@gmail.com 

2608 Rillwood Road 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35243 

205-790-5778  

Primary Location

2608 RILLWOOD RD 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Exhibit - Resolution 5428 
2608 Rillwood Rd



11/1/22, 1:55 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5438/printable?act=false&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=false&loc=true&sec=1011416%… 1/2

11/01/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

ANX-22-1

Annexation Application

Owner Information

Property Information

Annexation Request Information

Information on Children

Status: Active Date Created: Oct 10, 2022

Applicant

Andrew Davis 

andy.ironcity@gmail.com 

2608 Rillwood Road 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35243 

205-790-5778  

Primary Location

2608 RILLWOOD RD 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Owner's Name

Andrew and Marie Davis

Owner Mailing Address Inc. City, State, Zip

2427 Dolly Ridge Road Vestavia Hills AL  35243

Address of Property to be annexed?

2608 Rillwood Road

Legal Description of Property to be Annexed

Lot 9, Altadena Park

County Location of Property:

Jefferson County

Tax Parcel ID Number (if known)

28-00-28-4-001-014.000

County Zoning Classification

Jefferson County E-1

Is this annexation for redevelopment?

No

Compatible City Zoning Classification

Vestavia Hills E-2

Desired Zoning Classification

Vestavia Hills E-2

Is this a single-family residence with no additional development?

Yes

Please Explain your reason for requesting annexation?

Recently purchased property; desirous if having in the City

Are you located in the Rocky Ridge Fire District?

Yes

Exhibit - Resolution 5428 
2608 Rillwood Rd



11/1/22, 1:55 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5438/printable?act=false&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=false&loc=true&sec=1011416%… 2/2

Attachments

Timeline

Label Status Activated Completed Assignee Due Date

Custom Payment Waived Oct 10, 2022 at 8:47 am Oct 10, 2022 at 8:50 am - -

City Clerk Receipt Complete Oct 10, 2022 at 8:47 am Oct 11, 2022 at 2:04 pm Rebecca Leavings -

Public Services Director Review Complete Oct 11, 2022 at 2:04 pm Oct 11, 2022 at 2:07 pm Brian Davis 11/01/2022

Police Department Review Complete Oct 11, 2022 at 2:04 pm Oct 12, 2022 at 7:07 am Joel Gaston 11/01/2022

Fire Department Review Complete Oct 11, 2022 at 2:04 pm Oct 28, 2022 at 3:22 pm Ryan Farrell 11/01/2022

Engineering/Public Works Review Complete Oct 11, 2022 at 2:04 pm Oct 31, 2022 at 2:54 pm Christopher Brady 11/01/2022

Board of Education Review Complete Oct 11, 2022 at 2:04 pm Nov 1, 2022 at 1:30 pm Scott Brown 11/01/2022

Prepare for Annexation Committee Active Nov 1, 2022 at 1:30 pm - Rebecca Leavings -

Council Approval Inactive - - - -

Apply for Rezoning Inactive - - - -

Name of Child

Charles Davis

Age of Child

6

School Grade of Child

Kindergarten

Plan to Enroll in Vestavia Hills School within 2 years?

Yes

Name of Child

Caroline Davis

Age of Child

3

School Grade of Child

n/a

Plan to Enroll in Vestavia Hills Schools within 2 years?

no

Addition children information

--

pdf 2608 Rillwood Road.pdf 

Uploaded by Rebecca Leavings on Oct 10, 2022 at 8:47 am

pdf map.pdf 

Uploaded by Rebecca Leavings on Oct 10, 2022 at 8:47 am

pdf 2608 Rillwood Road.pdf 

Uploaded by Rebecca Leavings on Oct 10, 2022 at 8:47 am

Exhibit - Resolution 5428 
2608 Rillwood Rd



Exhibit - Resolution 5428 
2608 Rillwood Rd



Exhibit - Resolution 5428 
2608 Rillwood Rd



Exhibit - Resolution 5428 
2608 Rillwood Rd



Exhibit - Resolution 5428 
2608 Rillwood Rd



Ordinance Number 3140 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3140 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Andrew and Marie Davis dated 

June 20, 2022, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
2608 Rillwood Road 
Lot 9, Altadena Park 

Andrew and Marie Davis 
 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

 



Ordinance Number 3140 
Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3140 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 19th day of December, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3140 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 5429 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5429 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated June 22, 2022, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous to 

the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 19th day of December, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

21st day of December 2022. 

 2.  That on the 27th day of March, 2023, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5429 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5429 
Page 2 

 
2594 Acton Road 

Lot 2, Altadena Valley Country Club, Fairway Sector 
Al and Patricia Foster, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor Notes

====>  2594 Acton Road Property Address

====>   $                                                           334,800  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$33,480.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor Notes

$688.01 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$962.55 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,650.56 Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE CITY

$505.55 SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE) SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)

$274.54 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$688.01 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,742.63 Annexation Revenue to BOE SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion) (8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$2,430.65 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



11/1/22, 1:31 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5441/26380/printable 1/1

11/01/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

ANX-22-2

Engineering/Public Works Review

Annexation Application

Comments

Christopher Brady, Oct 31, 2022 at 2:55pm

no significant concerns noted; Acton Road is a Jefferson County Through Road

Status: Complete

Assignee: Christopher Brady

Became Active: 10/11/2022

Completed: 10/31/2022

Applicant

Alan Foster 

altriciafoster@gmail.com 

2594 Acton Road 

Birmingham, AL 35243 

205-807-3904  

Primary Location

2594 ACTON RD 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



11/1/22, 1:30 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5441/26383/printable 1/1

11/01/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

ANX-22-2

Board of Education Review

Annexation Application

Comments

Scott Brown, Nov 1, 2022 at 1:27pm

No objection

Status: Complete

Assignee: Scott Brown

Became Active: 10/11/2022

Completed: 11/01/2022

Applicant

Alan Foster 

altriciafoster@gmail.com 

2594 Acton Road 

Birmingham, AL 35243 

205-807-3904  

Primary Location

2594 ACTON RD 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



11/1/22, 1:50 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5441/printable?act=false&app=true&att=false&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=1011416%… 1/2

11/01/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

ANX-22-2

Annexation Application

Owner Information

Property Information

Annexation Request Information

Information on Children

Status: Active Date Created: Oct 10, 2022

Applicant

Alan Foster 

altriciafoster@gmail.com 

2594 Acton Road 

Birmingham, AL 35243 

205-807-3904  

Primary Location

2594 ACTON RD 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35243

Owner's Name

Alan and Patricia Foster

Owner Mailing Address Inc. City, State, Zip

2594 Acton Road, Vestavia Hills AL  35243

Address of Property to be annexed?

2594 Acton Road

Legal Description of Property to be Annexed

Lot 2, Altadena Valley Country Club Fairway Sector

County Location of Property:

Jefferson County

Tax Parcel ID Number (if known)

28-00-33-4-001-005.000

County Zoning Classification

JC A-1

Is this annexation for redevelopment?

No

Compatible City Zoning Classification

VH A

Desired Zoning Classification

--

Is this a single-family residence with no additional development?

Yes

Please Explain your reason for requesting annexation?

n/a

Are you located in the Rocky Ridge Fire District?

Yes

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



11/1/22, 1:50 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5441/printable?act=false&app=true&att=false&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=1011416%… 2/2

Timeline

Label Status Activated Completed Assignee Due Date

Custom Payment Paid Oct 10, 2022 at 8:59 am Oct 10, 2022 at 8:59 am - -

City Clerk Receipt Complete Oct 10, 2022 at 8:59 am Oct 11, 2022 at 2:07 pm Rebecca Leavings -

Police Department Review Complete Oct 11, 2022 at 2:07 pm Oct 12, 2022 at 7:06 am Joel Gaston 10/31/2022

Public Services Director Review Complete Oct 11, 2022 at 2:07 pm Oct 12, 2022 at 10:49 am Brian Davis 10/31/2022

Fire Department Review Complete Oct 11, 2022 at 2:07 pm Oct 28, 2022 at 3:24 pm Ryan Farrell 10/31/2022

Engineering/Public Works Review Complete Oct 11, 2022 at 2:07 pm Oct 31, 2022 at 2:55 pm Christopher Brady 10/31/2022

Board of Education Review Complete Oct 11, 2022 at 2:07 pm Nov 1, 2022 at 1:27 pm Scott Brown 10/31/2022

Prepare for Annexation Committee Active Nov 1, 2022 at 1:27 pm - Rebecca Leavings -

Council Approval Inactive - - - -

Apply for Rezoning Inactive - - - -

Name of Child

na

Age of Child

--

School Grade of Child

--

Plan to Enroll in Vestavia Hills School within 2 years?

--

Name of Child

--

Age of Child

--

School Grade of Child

--

Plan to Enroll in Vestavia Hills Schools within 2 years?

--

Addition children information

--

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5429 
2594 Acton Road



Ordinance Number 3141 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3141 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Al and Patricia Foster dated June 

22, 2022, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, 

Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate 

limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
2594 Acton Road 

Lot 2, Altadena Valley Country Club, Fairway Sector 
Al and Patricia Foster 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

 



Ordinance Number 3141 
Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3141 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 19th day of December, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3141 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 5430 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5430 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated October 5, 2022, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 19th day of December, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

21st day of December, 2022. 

 2.  That on the 27th day of March, 2023, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5430 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5430 
Page 2 

 
2401 Rocky Ridge Road 

Lot 9, Buckhead, 1st Sector 
Charles Kessler, Owner(s) 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5430 
2401 Rocky Ridge Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5430 
2401 Rocky Ridge Road



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor Notes

====>  2401 Rocky Ridge Road Property Address

====>   $                                                           242,000  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$24,200.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor Notes

$497.31 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$695.75 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$1,193.06 Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE CITY

$365.42 SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE) SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)

$198.44 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$497.31 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$1,259.61 Annexation Revenue to BOE SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion) (8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$1,756.92 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5430 
2401 Rocky Ridge Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5430 
2401 Rocky Ridge Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5430 
2401 Rocky Ridge Road



11/1/22, 1:27 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5442/26390/printable 1/1

11/01/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

ANX-22-3

Engineering/Public Works Review

Annexation Application

Comments

Christopher Brady, Oct 31, 2022 at 2:56pm

no significant concerns noted; Rocky Ridge Road is a Jefferson County Through Road;  new

construction has a few bare spots remaining in newly sodded yard; will check with County

regarding final inspections and permit status.

Status: Complete

Assignee: Christopher Brady

Became Active: 10/11/2022

Completed: 10/31/2022

Applicant

Jason Kessler 

jdkessler84@gmail.com 

3505 Bent River Road 

Birmingham, AL 35216 

205-985-7171  

Primary Location

2401 ROCKY RIDGE RD 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5430 
2401 Rocky Ridge Road



11/1/22, 1:27 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5442/26393/printable 1/1

11/01/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

ANX-22-3

Board of Education Review

Annexation Application

Comments

Scott Brown, Nov 1, 2022 at 1:25pm

No objection

Status: Complete

Assignee: Scott Brown

Became Active: 10/11/2022

Completed: 11/01/2022

Applicant

Jason Kessler 

jdkessler84@gmail.com 

3505 Bent River Road 

Birmingham, AL 35216 

205-985-7171  

Primary Location

2401 ROCKY RIDGE RD 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5430 
2401 Rocky Ridge Road



11/1/22, 1:45 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5442/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=1011416%2… 1/3

11/01/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

ANX-22-3

Annexation Application

Owner Information

Property Information

Annexation Request Information

Information on Children

Status: Active Date Created: Oct 10, 2022

Applicant

Jason Kessler 

jdkessler84@gmail.com 

3505 Bent River Road 

Birmingham, AL 35216 

205-985-7171  

Primary Location

2401 ROCKY RIDGE RD 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Owner's Name

Charles Kessler Jr.

Owner Mailing Address Inc. City, State, Zip

3002 South Cove Drive, Vestavia Hills AL 35216

Address of Property to be annexed?

2401 Rocky Ridge Road

Legal Description of Property to be Annexed

Lot 9, Buckhead, 1st Secto

County Location of Property:

Jefferson County

Tax Parcel ID Number (if known)

40-00-05-2-007-007.000

County Zoning Classification

JC E-2

Is this annexation for redevelopment?

No

Compatible City Zoning Classification

VH R-1

Desired Zoning Classification

--

Is this a single-family residence with no additional development?

Yes

Please Explain your reason for requesting annexation?

Property has been renovated and owner is desirous of selling in City limits

Are you located in the Rocky Ridge Fire District?

Yes

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5430 
2401 Rocky Ridge Road



11/1/22, 1:45 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5442/printable?act=true&app=true&att=true&emp=true&int=true&loc=true&sec=1011416%2… 2/3

Attachments

History

Date Activity

Oct 10, 2022 at 9:03 am Rebecca Leavings started a draft of Record ANX-22-3

Oct 10, 2022 at 9:11 am Rebecca Leavings added attachment 2401 Rocky Ridge Road.pdf to Record ANX-22-3

Oct 10, 2022 at 9:11 am Rebecca Leavings submitted Record ANX-22-3

Oct 10, 2022 at 9:11 am approval step City Clerk Receiptwas assigned to Rebecca Leavings on Record ANX-22-3

Oct 10, 2022 at 9:12 am completed payment step Custom Payment on Record ANX-22-3

Oct 10, 2022 at 9:12 am Rebecca Leavings added a guest: ckessler1@bellsouth.net to Record ANX-22-3

Oct 11, 2022 at 2:07 pm Rebecca Leavings changed the deadline to Nov 01, 2022 on approval step Engineering/Public Works Review

on Record ANX-22-3

Oct 11, 2022 at 2:08 pm Rebecca Leavings changed the deadline to Nov 01, 2022 on approval step Fire Department Review on Record

ANX-22-3

Oct 11, 2022 at 2:08 pm Rebecca Leavings changed the deadline to Nov 01, 2022 on approval step Police Department Review on

Record ANX-22-3

Oct 11, 2022 at 2:08 pm Rebecca Leavings changed the deadline to Nov 01, 2022 on approval step Board of Education Review on

Record ANX-22-3

Oct 11, 2022 at 2:08 pm Rebecca Leavings changed the deadline to Nov 01, 2022 on approval step Public Services Director Review on

Record ANX-22-3

Oct 11, 2022 at 2:08 pm Rebecca Leavings approved approval step City Clerk Receipt on Record ANX-22-3

Oct 11, 2022 at 2:08 pm approval step Engineering/Public Works Reviewwas assigned to Lori Beth Kearley on Record ANX-22-3

Oct 11, 2022 at 2:08 pm changed the deadline to Nov 01, 2022 on approval step Engineering/Public Works Review on Record ANX-22-

3

Oct 11, 2022 at 2:08 pm approval step Fire Department Reviewwas assigned to Ryan Farrell on Record ANX-22-3

Oct 11, 2022 at 2:08 pm changed the deadline to Nov 01, 2022 on approval step Fire Department Review on Record ANX-22-3

Oct 11, 2022 at 2:08 pm changed the deadline to Nov 01, 2022 on approval step Police Department Review on Record ANX-22-3

Oct 11, 2022 at 2:08 pm changed the deadline to Nov 01, 2022 on approval step Board of Education Review on Record ANX-22-3

Name of Child

na

Age of Child

--

School Grade of Child

--

Plan to Enroll in Vestavia Hills School within 2 years?

--

Name of Child

--

Age of Child

--

School Grade of Child

--

Plan to Enroll in Vestavia Hills Schools within 2 years?

--

Addition children information

--

pdf owners affidavit.pdf 

Uploaded by Rebecca Leavings on Oct 10, 2022 at 9:09 am

pdf map.pdf 

Uploaded by Rebecca Leavings on Oct 10, 2022 at 9:09 am

pdf 2401 Rocky Ridge Road.pdf 

Uploaded by Rebecca Leavings on Oct 10, 2022 at 9:11 am

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5430 
2401 Rocky Ridge Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5430 
2401 Rocky Ridge Road



Ordinance Number 3142 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3142 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Charles Kessler dated October 5, 

2022, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the 

City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
2401 Rocky Ridge Road 

Lot 9, Buckhead, 1st Sector 
Charles Kessler 
 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

 



Ordinance Number 3142 
Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3142 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 19th day of December, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3142 
Page 3 

 

 



Resolution Number 5431 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5431 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated October 3, 2022, wherein all owners of certain property contiguous 

to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property be annexed 

to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 19th day of December, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

21st day of December 2022. 

 2.  That on the 27th day of March, 2023, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5431 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5431 
Page 2 

 
2565 Rocky Ridge Road 

Grace Covenant Baptist Church, Owner(s) 
 
More particularly described as follows: 
 
Two tracts of property in the Northwest Quarter of Section 32, Township 18 South, Range 
2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described as follows:  
 

Parcel I:  Begin at a point 354 feet North of the Southeast corner of the NE 
1/4 of NW 1/4 of Section 32, Township 18 South, Range 2 West; thence 
North 234 feet; thence with an angle of 79 degrees 52 minutes to the left 
335 feet to the center line of public road (now known as Rocky Ridge 
Road); thence with an angle of 72 degrees 45 minutes to the left and along 
and including to the center line of said road 239 feet; thence with an angle 
of 107 degrees 15 minutes to the left 465 feet to point of beginning.  Less 
and except that part of subject property included in deed to Mary Eugenia 
DeGroat, as recorded in Real Volume 1091, Page 152 in the Office of the 
Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 
 
Parcel 2:  Commence at the Southeast corner of said 1/4 Section and thence 
run North 02 degrees 18 minutes 14 seconds West along the East line of 
said 1/4 Section for 1,627.48 feet to the point of beginning of the tract of 
land herein described; thence run North 02 degrees 17 minutes 42 seconds 
West for 20.32 feet; thence run North 82 degrees 02 minutes 09 seconds 
West for 407.92 feet to a point on the Easterly right-of-way line of Rocky 
Ridge Road; thence run South 25 degrees 12 minutes 08 seconds West along 
said road right-of-way for 20.94 feet; thence run South 82 degrees 02 
minutes 09 seconds East for 417.75 feet to the point of beginning. 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5431 
2565 Rocky Ridge Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5431 
2565 Rocky Ridge Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5431 
2565 Rocky Ridge Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5431 
2565 Rocky Ridge Road



11/1/22, 1:23 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5443/26406/printable 1/1

11/01/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

ANX-22-4

Engineering/Public Works Review

Annexation Application

Comments

Christopher Brady, Oct 31, 2022 at 2:57pm

no concerns noted; Rocky Ridge Road is a Jefferson County Through Road.

Status: Complete

Assignee: Christopher Brady

Became Active: 10/11/2022

Completed: 10/31/2022

Applicant

Richard Hughes 

rohughes@charter.net 

2565 Rocky Ridge Road 

Vestavia Hills , AL 35243 

205-586-0730  

Primary Location

2565 ROCKY RIDGE RD 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5431 
2565 Rocky Ridge Road



11/1/22, 1:23 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5443/26409/printable 1/1

11/01/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

ANX-22-4

Board of Education Review

Annexation Application

Comments

Scott Brown, Nov 1, 2022 at 1:22pm

No objection

Status: Complete

Assignee: Scott Brown

Became Active: 10/11/2022

Completed: 11/01/2022

Applicant

Richard Hughes 

rohughes@charter.net 

2565 Rocky Ridge Road 

Vestavia Hills , AL 35243 

205-586-0730  

Primary Location

2565 ROCKY RIDGE RD 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35243

Exhibit - Resolution No. 5431 
2565 Rocky Ridge Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5431 
2565 Rocky Ridge Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5431 
2565 Rocky Ridge Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5431 
2565 Rocky Ridge Road



Exhibit - Resolution No. 5431 
2565 Rocky Ridge Road



Ordinance 3143 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3143 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Grace Covenant Baptist Church 

dated October 3, 2022, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to 

the corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia 

Hills; and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

2565 Rocky Ridge Road 
Grace Covenant Baptist Church 

 
 
More particularly described as follows: 
 
Two tracts of property in the Northwest Quarter of Section 32, Township 18 South, Range 
2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama, more particularly described as follows:  
 



Ordinance 3143 
Page 2 

 

Parcel I:  Begin at a point 354 feet North of the Southeast corner of the NE 
1/4 of NW 1/4 of Section 32, Township 18 South, Range 2 West; thence 
North 234 feet; thence with an angle of 79 degrees 52 minutes to the left 
335 feet to the center line of public road (now known as Rocky Ridge 
Road); thence with an angle of 72 degrees 45 minutes to the left and along 
and including to the center line of said road 239 feet; thence with an angle 
of 107 degrees 15 minutes to the left 465 feet to point of beginning.  Less 
and except that part of subject property included in deed to Mary Eugenia 
DeGroat, as recorded in Real Volume 1091, Page 152 in the Office of the 
Judge of Probate of Jefferson County, Alabama. 
 
Parcel 2:  Commence at the Southeast corner of said 1/4 Section and thence 
run North 02 degrees 18 minutes 14 seconds West along the East line of 
said 1/4 Section for 1,627.48 feet to the point of beginning of the tract of 
land herein described; thence run North 02 degrees 17 minutes 42 seconds 
West for 20.32 feet; thence run North 82 degrees 02 minutes 09 seconds 
West for 407.92 feet to a point on the Easterly right-of-way line of Rocky 
Ridge Road; thence run South 25 degrees 12 minutes 08 seconds West along 
said road right-of-way for 20.94 feet; thence run South 82 degrees 02 
minutes 09 seconds East for 417.75 feet to the point of beginning. 

 
  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance 3143 
Page 3 

 

 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3143 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 19th day of December, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance 3143 
Page 4 

 

 



Resolution Number 5432 
Page 1 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 5432 

 
 A RESOLUTION PROPOSING THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN 

TERRITORY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF 
VESTAVIA HILLS, ALABAMA. 

 
 WHEREAS, there has been a petition filed with the City Clerk of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and herein presented to the City Council of the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, dated September 23, 2022, wherein all owners of certain property 

contiguous to the City Limits of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, ask that their property 

be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama; and 

 WHEREAS, said Petition has been presented to the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, on the 19th day of December, 2022; and 

 WHEREAS, it would be in the best interest of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, 

and to the citizens thereof to consider annexation of said territory and bringing it within 

the corporate limits of this Municipality; and 

 WHEREAS, said petitioners must comply with Act #604, 1970 Alabama 

Legislature regarding Fire Districts (property owners are to be responsible for fire dues if 

they are within another Fire District at the time of the annexation petition). 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

 1.  That the said Petition shall be published one (1) time in The Birmingham News, 

a newspaper of general circulation in Vestavia Hills, Jefferson County, Alabama, on the 

21st day of December, 2022. 

 2.  That on the 27th day of March, 2023, in the Vestavia Hills City Hall, a public 

hearing will be held to determine the truths of the matter set forth in said petition and to 

consider any protests or objections filed in writing with the City Clerk prior to such hearing, 

to determine whether it is in the public interest or not that said property be annexed to the 

City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and to consider adoption of an Ordinance annexing the 

territory described in said petition to this Municipality. 

 3.  That this Resolution shall become known and referred to as Resolution Number 

5432 by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, and as annexation of the 

following described property by the City Council of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama: 



Resolution Number 5432 
Page 2 

 
1420 Branchwater Circle 

Leon R. Gorman, Jr, Owner(s) 
 
More particularly described as follows: 
 

Begin at the northwest corner of the NE 1/4 of the NW 1/4 of Section 32, 
Township 18 South, Range 2 West, Jefferson County, Alabama. and run in 
an easterly direction along the north line of said 1/4-1/4 section a distance 
of 187. 58 feet to a point; thence turn an interior angle of 68° 17' 43” and 
run to the right in a southwesterly direction a distance of 4.70 feet to a point; 
thence turn an interior angle of 113° 54' 04" and run to the right in a 
northwesterly direction a distance of 14.29 feet to a point; thence turn 
anꞏinterior angle of 199 ° 45’ 45” and run to the left in a southwesterly 
direction a distance of 20.00 feet to a point; thence turn a n interior angle of 
209° 05' 43” and run to the left in a southwesterly direction a distance of 
17.00 feet to a point; thence turn an interior angle of 176° 38' 01'' and run 
to the right in a southwesterly direction a distance of 57.00 feet to a point; 
thence turn an interior angle of 193° 13’ 07 “ and run to the left in a 
southwesterly direction a distance of 26. 89 feet to a point; thence turn an 
interior angle of 188° 51' 00 " and run to the left in a southwesterly direction 
a distance of 112.70 feet to a point; thence turn an interior angle of 149° 37 
' 52" and run to the right in a southwesterly direction a distance of 37.21 
feet to a point; thence turn an interior angle of 51° 48’ 10” and run to the 
right in a northerly direction a distance of 22.39 feet to a point; thence turn 
an interior angle of 260° 42' 13'' and run to the left in a northwesterly 
direction a distance of 136.28 feet to a point on the southeasterly line of Lot 
20, Block 3, according to the survey of Vesthaven 6th Sector, 3rd Addition, 
as recorded in map book 80 page 55 in the Probate Office of Jefferson 
County, Alabama; thence turn an interior angle of 76° 03' 36” and run to the 
right in a northeasterly direction and along the southeasterly line of said lot 
20 a distance of 61.68 feet to a point; thence turn on interior angle of 199° 
45' 00" and run to the left in a northerly direction and along the east: line of 
said subdivision a distance of 121.94 feet to a point on the north line of said 
Section 32; thence turn an interior angle of 92° 17’ 45” and run to the right 
in an easterly direction along the north line of said Section 32 a distance of 
84.22 feet to the point of beginning. 

 
 APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
 
 



Resolution Number 5432 
Page 3 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



City of Vestavia Hills
Tax Calculator

Homestead Properties

AD VALOREM TAX MILLAGE

Millage Multiplier

0.02055 Ad valorem to City General Fund: 20.55 mills

0.02875 City BOE portion: 28.75 mills

0.0151 District 20 School: 15.1 mills

0.0082 Countywide School: 8.2 mills

0.05205 Ad valorem to Schools (TOTAL): 52.05 mills

ASSESSED VALUE
Citizen Access Portal 

Descriptor Notes

====>  1420 Branchwater Circle Property Address

====>   $                                                           425,500  Appraised Value of Property TOTAL MARKET VALUE

10% Assessment Homestead Rate

$42,550.00 Assessed Value ASSD. VALUE

 AD VALOREM REVENUE 

Citizen Access Portal 
Descriptor Notes

$874.40 City portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (20.55 mills rate)
$1,223.31 BOE portion of ad valorem (Subset of CITY) (28.75 mills rate)

$2,097.72 Total County remits to City for split with 
BOE CITY

$642.51 SPC DIST1 BOE local rev (County gives 
directly to BOE) SPC SCHOOL1 (15.1 mills rate)

$348.91 Countywide School Tax to VH SCHOOL (8.2 mills rate)

TOTAL AD VALOREM REVENUE
$874.40 Annexation Revenue to CITY CITY (General Fund portion) (20.55 mills)

$2,214.73 Annexation Revenue to BOE SCHOOL + SPC SCHOOL1 + 
CITY (BOE portion) (8.2 mills + 15.1 mills + 28.75 mills)

$3,089.13 TOTAL ANNEXATION REVENUE BENEFIT

Legend
City Revenue
BOE Revenue

Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



11/1/22, 1:17 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5448/26416/printable 1/1

11/01/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

ANX-22-5

Engineering/Public Works Review

Annexation Application

Comments

Christopher Brady, Oct 31, 2022 at 2:58pm

no concerns noted; the City currently maintains this section of roadway (cul de sac); roadway and

valley gutter in good condition.

Status: Complete

Assignee: Christopher Brady

Became Active: 10/11/2022

Completed: 10/31/2022

Applicant

Kent Gorman 

kentgorman10@gmail.com 

1420 Branchwater Circle 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 

205-531-1291  

Primary Location

1420 BRANCHWATER CIR 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35216

Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



11/1/22, 1:18 PM OpenGov

https://vestaviahillsal.viewpointcloud.io/#/explore/records/5448/26419/printable 1/1

11/01/2022

City of Vestavia Hills, AL

ANX-22-5

Board of Education Review

Annexation Application

Comments

Scott Brown, Nov 1, 2022 at 1:16pm

No Objection

Status: Complete

Assignee: Scott Brown

Became Active: 10/11/2022

Completed: 11/01/2022

Applicant

Kent Gorman 

kentgorman10@gmail.com 

1420 Branchwater Circle 

Vestavia Hills, AL 35216 

205-531-1291  

Primary Location

1420 BRANCHWATER CIR 

VESTAVIA HILLS, AL 35216

Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Exhibit - Resolution 5432 
1420 Branchwater Circle



Ordinance Number 3144 
Page 1 

 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 3144 
 
 AN ORDINANCE TO ALTER, REARRANGE, AND EXTEND THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF VESTAVIA HILLS, 
ALABAMA, SO AS TO EMBRACE AND INCLUDE WITHIN THE 
CORPORATE AREA OF SAID CITY ALL TERRITORY NOW 
WITHIN SUCH CORPORATE LIMITS AND ALSO CERTAIN 
OTHER TERRITORY CONTIGUOUS TO SAID CITY. 

 
  WHEREAS, a certain petition signed by Leon R. Gorman, Jr dated 

September 23, 2022, that the property therein described be annexed to the City of Vestavia 

Hills, Alabama, together with a map of said territory showing its relationship to the 

corporate limits of the City, has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills; 

and 

  WHEREAS, this Council has determined and found that the matters set 

forth and alleged in said petition are true and correct, and that it is in the public interest that 

said territory be annexed to the City of Vestavia Hills; 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Vestavia Hills, Alabama, as follows: 

  SECTION 1.  That said Council hereby assents to the annexation of said 

territory to the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, the corporate limits of the City to be 

extended and rearranged pursuant to the provisions of Title 11, Chapter 42, Article 2, Code 

of Alabama, 1975 (Sections 11-42-20 through 11-42-23, as amended) so as to embrace and 

include said territory, in addition to the territory already within its present corporate limits.  

The new boundary line does not lie at any point more than half the distance between the 

old city boundary and the corporate boundary of any other municipality.  Said territory is 

described as follows: 

 
1420 Branchwater Circle 

Leon R. Gorman, Jr 
 

  SECTION 2.  That the City Clerk shall file a certified copy of this Ordinance 

containing an accurate description of said annexed territory with the Probate Judge of 

Jefferson County, Alabama, and also cause a copy of this Ordinance to be published/posted 

in accordance with Alabama law. 



Ordinance Number 3144 
Page 2 

 

  APPROVED and ADOPTED this the 19th day of December, 2022. 

 
 
 
 
      Ashley C. Curry 
      Mayor 
ATTESTED BY: 
 
 
 
 
Rebecca Leavings 
City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 
CERTIFICATION: 
 
 I, Rebecca Leavings, as City Clerk of the City of Vestavia Hills, Alabama, hereby 
certify that the above and foregoing copy of 1 (one) Ordinance # 3144 is a true and correct 
copy of such Ordinance that was duly adopted by the City Council of the City of Vestavia 
Hills on the 19th day of December, 2022, as same appears in the official records of said 
City. 
 
 Posted at Vestavia Hills Municipal Center, Vestavia Hills Library in the Forest, 
Vestavia Hills New Merkle House and Vestavia Hills Recreational Center this the ______ 
day of ______________, 2022. 
 
 
 
      Rebecca Leavings 
      City Clerk 
 
 
 
 



Ordinance Number 3144 
Page 3 

 

 


	Agenda
	11 12 2022 minutes
	11 28 2022 minutes
	Resolution 5427
	Ordinance 3139
	Resolution 5433
	Ordinance 3137
	Resolution 5425
	Resolution 5426
	Ordinance 3138
	Ordinance 3137
	Resolution 5428
	Ordinance 3140
	Resolution 5429
	Ordinance 3141
	Resolution 5430
	Ordinance 3142
	Resolution 5431
	Ordinance 3143
	Resolution 5432
	Ordinance 3144



